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Abbreviations
CEGCO

Central Electricity Generating Company.

SEPGCO

Samra Electric Power Generating Company.

AES Jordan PSC

Amman East Power Plant (IPP1)

QEPCO

Qatrana Electric Power Company. (IPP2)

AAEPCO

Amman Asia Electric Power Company. (IPP3)

AES LEVANT

AES LEVANT Holding B.V Jordan (IPP4)

EDCO

Electricity Distribution Company.

NEPCO

National Electric Power Company.

JEPCO

Jordan Electric Power Company.

IDECO

Irbid District Electricity Company.

QAIA

Queen Alia International Airport

SS

Substation

GT

Gas Turbine

OHL

Overhead Line

JD

Jordan Dinar

GNP

Gross National Product

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

T.O

Tons of Oil

Kg.O.E

Kilogram of Oil Equivalent

T.T.O.E

Thousand Tons of Oil Equivalent
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Measures
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kW

Kilowatt (1000 Watt)

MW

Megawatt (1000 kW)

GW

Gegawatt (1000 MW)

kV

Kilovolt (1000 Volt)

kVA

Kilovolt Ampere (1000 Volt Ampere)

MVA

Megavolt Ampere (1000 kVA)

kWh

Kilowatt - hour (1000 wh)

MWh

Megawatt - hour (1000 kWh)

GWh

Gegawatt - hour (1000 MWh)

General Manager Speech
The energy sector is the biggest challenge to the national economy since it
is a major driver of economy and it directly affects the economic growth.
The National Electric Power Company (NEPCO) works to ensure
sustainability of the electrical system as per the highest international
standards, making the electrical system in the Kingdom, at the technical
level, comparable to similar systems in developed countries.
Issuing the 2018 annual report of NEPCO, I am pleased to review our
achievements and the obstacles we faced to achieve goals and address challenges.
Despite the challenges, NEPCO, by the end of last year 2018, made significant achievements that
high-rank the company to be one of the best electricity companies regionally and worldwide. NEPCO
adopted the best international standards for measuring performance indicators including efficiency,
availability, ratio of electrical loss on transmission grids, number of electricity cuts and the average
cut period.
NEPCO continued implementing its plans to enhance the transmission grid by installing new substations and transmission lines and expanding the existing ones to accommodate the renewable energy
projects, which last year accounted for (9%) of the total energy. By the end of 2019, such percentage
should reach up to (16%), (25%) in 2020 and (30%) in 2022. These numbers are higher than those
mentioned in the national strategy for the energy sector, which aimed at (20%) in 2020.
The electrical system has more renewable energy than the developed countries who are experienced
in such field. The solar and wind energy contribution, by 2022, in Germany, Spain and Britain will be
around (25-30%) to the total electric power, while in Italy it will not exceed (15%).
In order to accommodate the accelerated production of renewable energy projects and projects in
progress, the company is expanding the national grid to enhance its capacity by the Green Corridor
project to transmit between ( 800 - 1000) MW generated from renewable energy projects in the south
to the load centres in different areas in the Kingdom. The project is expected to be completed midyear 2019.
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The main challenge the Company faced recently was the interruption of the Egyptian natural gas
supply, forcing us to find alternative sources, like using liquefied gas imported by vessels through
the port of Aqaba and the concluding agreements with Egypt to provide Jordan with about half of the
system›s needs of natural gas for 2019.
The Company›s projects of electric interconnection at the regional level are still ongoing. In addition
to the electric interconnection line with Egypt and providing the Palestinians with electricity, there
have been serious attempts with Iraq and Saudi Arabia and the Gulf interconnection system where the
necessary technical and economic studies have been carried out resulting in signing memorandums
of understanding and preliminary agreements to enhance the Arab electric interconnection system.
This positively reflects on the electric system stability, economies, energy exchange, the Arab common market and openness to the world.
The company adopted a policy of strategic planning and institutional capacity building to ensure efficient performance and optimal utilization of available resources. This year, it will complete the master
plan to highlight the requirements of future expansions, whether in energy generation or enhancement
of the electric transmission grid, to reduce costs and charges and achieve fair cost of electric energy.
As per the vision of His Majesty King Abdullah II, this will positively reflects on performance and
contributes to achieve sustainable development.
In conclusion, I would like to express my appreciation to the Board of Directors for its continuous
support, and NEPCO cadres for their outstanding efforts and performance to serve this institution.

Eng. Amjad AL- Rawashdeh

Managing Director

Annual Report 2018
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A SHORT BRIEF
The National Electric Power Company (NEPCO) was established in the 1st of September 1996 in accordance with the General Electricity Law number (10) for the year 1996.
In compliance with this Law, the Jordan Electricity Authority which was established in accordance with
the Law number (21) for the year 1967, was transferred to a Public Shareholding Company named as the
National Electric Power Shareholding Company which is considered as the actual public legal successor
for Jordan Electricity Authority, where all its shares are completely owned by the Jordanian Government.
In 1999, the modified Electricity Law number (13) of the year 1999 has been issued.
In compliance with this modified Law, the National Electric Power Company (the mother) has been divided
into three electric companies of administrative and financial independence as from the beginning of the year
1999. These companies are: National Electric Power Company (NEPCO), Central Electricity Generation
Company (CEGCO) and Electricity Distribution Company (EDCO).

Vision
To elevate the Company’s status in all aspects to world standards at the same class of the best regional and
international electric utilities.

Mission
Provision of secured electric energy; with high levels of reliability of the electric power system; and continuity of supply of electric energy demand at economical prices pursuant to international quality standards;
meeting environmental requirements and good business practice in exchanging electric energy with neighbouring countries; a consolidation of corporate governance at the company; achieving optimal investment
in the infrastructure of the electric power transmission grid for the benefit of society; contribution in the
technology transfer; attraction of national and international investments in electricity sector and creation of
job opportunities for Jordanian professionals.
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Organization Frame
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Energy and Electricity in 2018
(Facts and Achievements)
The energy and electricity sector is one of the most important economic sectors in Jordan. In light of the limited primary energy sources in Jordan such as oil and gas, Jordan relied on external energy sources, mainly oil
and natural gas by about (93%). The burden is huge to Jordan economy due to the increasing cost of energy
import attributed to the continuous rise of prices globally.
Dealing with such challenges, the government passed some policies, laws and programs to divers and en�hance the contribution of the local energy sources like renewable energy (solar energy and wind power) as
well as the local primary energy sources such as oil shale. In this regard, the comprehensive national strategy
of energy and electricity sector in Jordan addressed the importance of enhancing the contribution of the local
energy sources in the total energy mix, the aim is to increase the contribution of renewable energy and oil
shale to the total energy mix to around (20%) and (15%) respectively by 2020.
In executing such strategy, Jordan spared no effort to encourage investments in renewable energy, where Jordan made achievements that include the generation of (1500) MW from solar energy and wind power. Jordan
is seeking to develop renewable energy technology, especially storage systems, to address operational constraints and fluctuations in generation and stabilize the electrical power system. In this regard, the Ministry of
Energy and Mineral Resources launched a new round of investment in solar energy and wind power storage
projects in conjunction with the expansion of the Green Corridor.
The first electric power plant with direct burning of oil shale is being implemented with a generation capacity
of (470) MW and an investment cost of (2.2) billion dollars
Such projects, especially the renewable energy projects, launched through the direct proposal submission
process, reduce both the Kingdom›s dependence on importing the fuel needed to generate electricity and the
cost of generation. They also support the electrical power system with new generation capacities based on
local sources.
Recently, there has been a remarkable dependence on renewable energy in Jordan as several projects in this
area were achieved and several energy purchase agreements were concluded paving the way for future projects in such field, which include the use of storage systems to ensure stability of the electrical power system.
Below are the major achievements made in 2018 and the achievements in renewable energy projects.
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Renewable Energy Projects:

A – The Completed Renewable Energy Projects

Capacity
)MW(

Operation Data

Jordan wind project / Tafila

117

SEP/2015

Al-Hussein wind project / Ma’an

88

First Quarter/2016

171

Mid /2018

200

First Quarter/2016

100

Mid /2018

95

First Quarter/2018

Project Name

Wind Energy
Projects

First round of the direct offers:
- Al-Rajaf project (82) MW
- Al-Fajeej project (89) MW
First round of the direct offers, (12) PV projects.
Second round of the direct offers:

Solar Energy
Projects
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- Mafraq development projects (100) MW.

Quwireh PV Project
Large Industries

Lafarge Projects

15

--

)Small Solar Systems (< 5 MW

Net Metering Projects
Welling Projects

185
65

---

14

B –Under Construction Renewable Energy Projects

Capacity
)MW(

Operation
Date

418

2019-2020

50

2021/2022

100

2019

Baynouna Project

200

2020

Third round of the direct offers, (3) PV projects

150

2021

Al-Risha PV Project
East Amman Project
Al-Qatranna PV Project
Al-Hussiniha (Philadelphia) PV Project
Al-Haq PV Project
Universities Projects
Welling Projects / NEPCO,s Transmission Grid
Medium Industries /

50
40
30
50
50
40
370
100
150
130

Mid/2019
Mid/2019
-2021
2021
--2023/2024
---

Project Name

Wind Energy
Projects

First round of the direct offers:
- Shobak project (45) MW
- Mas project (100) MW
- Daihan Project (51) MW
- El-Abour Project (51) MW
Third round of the direct offers, (1) Wind Project
Second round of the direct offers:
-

Solar Energy
Projects

Mafraq development projects (50) MW
Al Safawi project (50) MW

Small Solar Systems (< 5 MW)

Net Metering Projects
Welling Projects
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Other Energy Projects:

− The project of generating electricity from oil shale is still in progress as per the timeline. It will produce (470) MW electric power and contribute up to (15%) of the Kingdom’s needs of electricity. The
project will solely depend on the local oil shale. It is estimated that (70) billion tons of oil shale are
available in Jordan. The project is expected to complete in the second half of 2020 where commercial
operation should begin.
− Jordan Atomic Energy Commission (JAEC) is conducting a study to find the best technology to construct small nuclear reactors in several locations in Jordan. The study addresses a number of proposals; constructing either two or six units with a capacity of (110) MW for each unit. It is expected, as
planned, that the first unit will operate in early 2026.
− Completing the New-Zarqa power plant project at the site where the previous Hussein thermal power
plant was located. The project includes the construction of a new electricity generation plant with a
capacity of (485) MW. The plant, owned by ACWA Power, will operate mainly on natural gas as primary fuel and diesel as a secondary fuel.
− Completing the expansion project of Al-Samra power plant (phase 4) in addition to a steam turbine
with capacity of (70) MW, so that the total generation capacity of the plant becomes (1241) MW.
Accordingly, Samra Electric Power Co. becomes the biggest electric power company in Jordan. The
Company›s production of electric power in 2018 is about (7710.2) GWh, which constitutes (37.6%)
of the total electricity generated in the Kingdom.
− Completing the project of Green Corridor as per the timeline as of early 2019. The project’s aim is to
transmit between (800-1000) MW of electricity from renewable energy sources from the south to the
load centres in other regions of the Kingdom. This project is important and aims at accommodating the
new electrical power generated from renewable energy sources. The project boosts the efficiency of
the Company’s electricity transmission line by installing new lines, constructing a substation in Ma’an
400/132 kV and expanding Qatrana and Queen Alia International Airport substations 132/33 kV.
− Developing projects to store the electricity produced from renewable energy through the establishment
Annual Report 2018
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of a power storage facility in the governorate of Irbid, with capacity of (30-60) MW. Furthermore,
NEPCO signed a memorandum of understanding with AES (IPP4) to establish a storage centre for
electricity produced from AES renewable energy projects, with a storage capacity of (20- 100) MW.
Such projects are important as they support the stability of the national transmission grid, especially
upon the integration of a significant number of renewable energy projects.

− Feasibility studies are being conducted for the execution of storage projects of energy generated from
renewable energy projects in dams. This project is in line with other energy storage projects and is the
first of its kind in the region. It enhances the contribution of renewable energy sources to the overall
energy mix by minimizing the effects of the fluctuations in the power produced from renewable resources.
− Completing the first electric power plant using coke and coal in Jordan, with a generation capacity of
(30) MW. The plant is equipped with the latest equipment and techniques in addition to the adherence
to the internationally recognized environmental standards. The national strategy estimated the contribution of coal to the total energy by around (5%) in 2025.
− As of early 2019, start importing natural gas from Egypt via Arab Gas Pipeline from El Arish in northeast Egypt to Aqaba in southern Jordan. Jordan and Egypt amended a previous agreement to conclude
on this one. The Egyptian natural gas contribution to the total electricity generated in Jordan in 2019
is expected to be (10%).
− Both governments of Jordan and Iraq are taking all the necessary measures to start the implementation
of the Arab Oil Pipeline project between the two countries. This project includes the construction of an
oil pipeline connecting Basra and Aqaba to export 1 million barrels per day of Iraqi crude oil through
the port of Aqaba, provided that a sub-pipeline is constructed to supply Jordan oil refinery with its
crude oil needs starting from 2022.
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National Electric Power
Company (NEPCO)
(Duties and Achievements)

NEPCO made great efforts in 2018 to keep up with the developments emerging from the comprehensive
national energy strategy, which focused on maximizing the contribution of local energy sources and identifying renewable energy sources in the total energy mix, the aim is to increase renewable energy contribution to
(20%) by 2020.
In this context, the Company continued its efforts to develop the electric power industry in Jordan by several
renewable energy projects (solar energy and wind power projects) in the first, second and third rounds of direct
proposals for renewable energy projects. The total capacity of the wind power projects reached about (280)
MW, whereas the total capacity of installed solar energy projects by 2018 is about (698) MW of which (250)
MW are connected directly to the distribution grids The contribution such renewable energy sources in the
total electricity generated in Jordan in 2020 is expected to be (20 %).
For the purpose of supplying electricity to all consumers throughout the Kingdom, in accordance with the
highest internationally accepted technical standards, the Company set and executed planning strategies and
studies. Expected load growth and future electricity demands were appraised. Additionally, an expansion study
of electricity generation projects and an expansion study of substations and the necessary transmission lines
were conducted. In 2018, the Company implemented a number of electrical projects throughout the Kingdom
to develop and enhance the national transmission grid, where main substations were installed and expanded
400/132 kV and 132/33 kV. Transmission lines with a capacity of 400 kV and 132 kV, required to connect substations with the new generation plants, were established. The Company has also prepared and implemented
operational programs and regular and annual preventative maintenance programs for all components of the
national transmission grid in order to maintain continuous electricity supply and availability of the national
transmission grid. The main substations capacity, by the end of 2018, amounted to (13991) MVA distributed
to (62) main substations, while the length of the 400 kV and 132 kV transmission lines was (1164) km and
(3636) km , respectively.
In 2018, the Company renewed the energy exchange agreement with the Egyptian Electricity Transmission
Company for 2019 to meet the Kingdom’s needs of electricity as available. It is expected that the amount of
electricity imported from Egypt during 2019 will be about (200) GWh.

Annual Report 2018
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The peak load of the electrical system in 2018 is (3205) MW, while was (3320) MW in 2017. This is expected
to increase by (1.9%) in 2019 and (3.0%) annually, based on the results of the Electricity Demand Forecast
Study for the period 2019-2040. In order to meet the demand for electrical power in Jordan, the Company,
through its national control centre (NCC), takes all necessary measures to ensure continuous electricity supply
to all consumers as per international standards and with feasible prices. Such measures are done in coordination and cooperation with related parties including generation and distribution companies, the Ministry of
Energy and Mineral Resources the Energy and Minerals Regulatory Authority.
It is worth mentioning that the generation capacity of Jordan electrical system reached about (5236) MW at
the end of 2018, including the generation capacity of renewable energy projects on the distribution grid, which
reached about (250) MW, compared to (4300) last year with a growth ratio of (21.8%).
On the other hand, the Company spared no efforts to develop the working mechanisms and procedures, improve performance and meet the standards of public safety and occupational and environmental health in
line with the latest international standards of quality. The company succeeded as it obtained (ISO14001) and
(OHSAS18001).
The Company prepared and implemented the necessary awareness and educational programs to raise the level
of preventive awareness among its employees in public safety and accident prevention. It also prepared and
updated an emergency plan to ensure adaptation to all expected and emergency changes, as well as following
up and maintaining the ISO9001 quality management system according to (ISO) requirements. This system
has been applied to all activities and procedures of the Company, in line with the latest version of ISO 9001
of 2008.
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NEPCO’s Achievement and
Performance Indicators
NEPCO statistical data (Table 1) showed a decrease in the peak load of the electrical system in 2018 compared to the peak load in 2017. The data also showed growth in the transmission lines length and the capacity
of main substations. Performance indicators (table 2) showed a decrease in the number of power outages and
unsupplied power. The percentage of electrical loss on the transmission grid increased from (1.68%) in 2017
to (1.98%) in 2018, noting that such percentage of electrical loss is considered within the natural limits according to the global indicators of electrical loss on transmission grids.
Below are the most distinguished statistics and performance indicators of 2018 compared to 2017.
Table (1): NEPCO’s Significant Figures
2018

2017

)%(

Summer

3000

3320

)9.6(

Winter

3205

3220

)0.5(

Available Capacity for Interconnected System (MW)

5236

4300

21.8

Purchased Electrical energy (GWh)

18913

19287

)1.9(

Sold Electrical Energy (GWh)

18539

18963

)2.2(

Transmission Losses (%)

1.98

1.68

--

National Grid Transmission Lines 400 kV (Km-Circuit)

1164

924

26.0

National Grid Transmission Lines 132 kV (Km-Circuit)

3636

3617

0.5

Substations Installed Capacities 132/33kV (MVA)

9151

8985

1.8

Substations Installed Capacities 400/132/33kV (MVA)

4560

3760

21.3

No. of Employees

1402

1399

0.2

NEPCO’s Fixed Assets (Million JD)

567

538

5.4

Peak load for Interconnected System (MW)

Annual Report 2018
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Table (2): NEPCO’s Performance Indicators
2018

2017

)%(

Annual Productivity (GWh Sold/Employee)

13.3

13.5

(1.5)

Transforming Installed Capacity (MVA/Employee)

10.0

9.3

7.5

93.43

80.53

16.1

Cost of Energy Purchased (Fils/kWh) sold

82.82

71.52

15.8

Other Costs (Fils/kWh) sold

10.60

9.01

18.2

Revenues (Fils/kWh)

74.51

77.51

(3.9)

Current Ratio (Times)

0.17

0.12

54.5

Net Profit (Loss) Ratio (%)

1.26

3.49

(63.9)

Total Debt to Total Assets Ratio (%)

111.8

126.0

(11.3)

Transmission Losses (%)

1.98

1.68

--

Availability of National Transmission Grid (%)

99.89

99.95

--

Number of Interruptions

1.5

6

(75.0)

Unsupplied Energy (MWh)

127

241

(47.3)

Average Interruption Duration (Min/ Interruption)

30

26

15.4

Average Unsupplied Energy (MWh/ Interruption)

8.5

40

(78.8)

Interruption Duration (Hour)

7.5

3.0

150.0

1. Manpower Indicators

2. Financial Indicator
Total Cost of kWh sold (Fils/kWh)

3. Technical Indicator
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Generation Capacity and
Electric Power Generated

The generation capacity of Jordan electrical system for the year 2018 reached (5236) MW compared to (4300)
MW in 2017 with a growth rate of (21.8%).
The generation capacity of renewable energy projects carried out on the transmission and distribution grids
reached about (980) MW by late 2018, representing about (18.7%) of the total generation capacity.
Table (3): Generation Capacity of Renewable Energy Projects in JORDAN
Transmission Grid

Direct Offers

Net Metering
Projects

Distribution Grid
Welling Projects

Net Metering
Projects

MW

Welling Projects

MW

Solar Energy

448.5

--

--

185

65

Wind Energy

279.0

--

--

--

--

Table (4): Available Capacity of Generating Plants in JORDAN (MW)
Year
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Steam
787
787
605
605
605

Gas Turbines
Diesel

N.GAS

Combined
Cycle

27
27
----

618
332
307
228
83

1614
2044
2044
2044
2740

* Working on (N.Gas + Diesel + Fuel Oil)
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*Diesel
814
814
814
814
814

Wind

Hydro

Biogas

Solar**

1.44
118.4
198.4
198.4
280.4

12
12
12
12
12

3.5
3.5
3.5
3.5
3.5

-5
285.5
395.5
698.5

**Include the projects on distribution grid.
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Total

Renewable Energy

3876.9
4142.9
4269.4
4300.4
5236.4

-

The total electricity generated and imported in the Kingdom reached (20692) GWh in 2018 compared
to (20824) GWh in 2017 with a negative growth rate of (0.6%). The total generation of electric power
in Jordan amounted to (20502) GWh with a negative growth rate of (1.3%) in 2017, while the imported electric power amounted to (188) GWh compared to (51) GWh in 2017, and with a growth rate
of (267.1%).

-

Electricity generated by conventional energy sources contributing by (89.3%) of the total electricity
generated in the Kingdom in 2018. While the contribution of renewable energy sources amounted to
(10.7%), as follows:
Contribution Margin

GWh

)%(

Transmission Grid

850.7

4.15

Distribution Grid

590

2.88

721.4

3.52

Biogas

3.4

0.02

Hydro

22.7

0.11

Solar Energy
Wind Energy

Peak Load and Installed Capacity of Power System
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
0.0

10.0

20.0

Load Factor (L.F)

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

Peak Load to Generation Capacity

23

80.0

90.0

100

Capacity Factor )CF(
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Table (5): Electrical Energy Generated and Imported in Jordan (GWh)
2015

2016

2017

2018

(%)

1. Electricity Sector

18536.9

19105.1

20066.3

19753.4

)1.6(

CEGCO

6382.6

4260.4

4332.3

1833.6

)57.7(

SEPGCO

5386.9

7194.4

7643.2

7710.2

0.9

AES Jordan PSC (IPP1)

1825.9

3163.0

2626.2

2794.9

6.4

QEPCO (IPP2)

2274.3

2880.6

3033.2

2754.5

)9.2(

AAEPCO (IPP3)

1401.3

262.8

288.1

499.3

73.3

AES Levant (IPP4)

1122.4

509.0

767.2

764.5

)0.4(

--

--

--

1218.4

--

121.0

390.7

447.6

719.8

60.8

King Talal Dam

1.6
-16.9

267.5
153.9
18.7

591.3
316.1
17.0

850.7
590
14.1

43.9
86.6
)17.1(

Jordan Biogas Company

4.0

4.1

4.1

3.4

)17.1(

472.2

558.6

706.1

748.4

Zarqa Power Station (ACWA)
Wind Energy
Solar Energy

Transmission Grid*
Distribution Grid

2. Large Industries

6.0

Potash Co.

109.3

222.0

354.1

339.7

)4.1(

Indo-Jordan Chemicals Co.

68.6

46.3

76.2

86.5

13.5

Refinery

65.2

84.1

79.3

81.3

2.5

Fertilizer Co.

80.2

51.2

45.3

81.0

78.8

Qatranna Cement Co.**

148.9

155.0

151.2

160.0

5.8

3. Imported Energy

603.8

333.8

51.3

188.3

267.1

Imported Energy from Egypt

603.8

333.8

51.3

188.3

267.1

19612.9

19997.5

20823.7

20690.2

)0.6(

Total
* Direct offers projects
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Primary Energy and Fuel
Consumption

Table (6): Fuel Consumption for Electricity Generation (T.T.O.E)

2015

2016

2017

2018

(%)

1. Electricity Sector

3833.0

3735.3

3804.4

3526.4

)7.3(

Heavy Fuel

1334.2

344.6

454.2

120.0

)73.6(

Natural Gas

1923.7

3377.1

3340.9

3402.2

1.8

Diesel

575.1

13.6

9.4

4.2

)55.3(

2. Large Industries*

159.3

165.7

190.3

202.8

6.6

Total

3992.3

3901.0

3994.8

3729.3

)6.6(

*Include the Large Industries in Table (5).

Contributing of primary and Renewable Energy Sources in Electricity Generation
%
100
90.0
80.0
70.0

Renewable Energy

60.0

Diesel

50.0
40.0

N.Gas

30.0

Heavy Fuel Oil

20.0
10.0
0.0
2014

2015

2016

2017
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Power Demand

The peak load of the electrical system in 2018 amounted to (3205) MW during January, compared to (3320)
MW in 2017 during July, with a negative growth rate of about (3.5%). The average annual growth for the
period (2010-2018) amounted to about (2.4%).

Table (7): Peak load for Interconnected System (MW)
Peak Load
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Morning
2840
2845
3310
3180
3320
3100

Evening
2975
2900
3160
3250
3220
3205

Minimum Load
1145
1250
1300
1300
1350
1290

Table (8): Contributing of Generating Units in the System Peak Load in 2018
Combined cycle units
Steam units
Gas Turbine units
Hydro units
Solar units
Wind units
Imports

Annual Report 2018

78.9
14.9
1.8
0.1
-4.1
0.2
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Table (9): Peak load for The Large Consumers (MW)
2013

2017

2018

)%(

JEPCO

1889.9

2032.7

1999.0

)1.7(

EDCO

450.8

561.1

562.8

0.3

IDECO

469.5

573.8

582.5

1.5

Refinery

11.9

9.2

8.8

)4.3(

Jordan Cement Company / Al-Fuheis plant

12.7

0.5

0.5

0.0

Jordan Cement Co. / Al-Rashadieh plant

20.4

22.4

21.2

)5.4(

Al-Rajhi Cement Company

18.2

19.4

26.1

34.5

Al-Hadeetha Cement Company

11.2

28.6

26.0

)9.1(

Qatrana Cement Company

22.0

0.8

0.24

)70.0(

Potash Co.

54.1

21.1

32.9

55.9

EL-Hasa Phosphate

9.5

8.7

7.3

)16.1(

Sheidiyah Phosphate

13.6

12.8

13.8

7.8

Queen Alia Airport

12.7

13.7

13.0

)5.1(

1.0

20.6

19.8

)3.9(

0

53.4

27.1

)49.3(

Indo-Jordan Fertilizer Company
Jerusalem Co. (Jericho)

Table (10): Electricity Demand Forecast in the Interconnected System
Max. Demand*

**Electrical Energy Generated

Year
2019
2020
2022
2025
2030
2040
*Summer Loads

MW

Growth (%)

GWh

Growth (%)

3057
3146
3341
3645
4186
5528

1.9
2.9
3.1
2.9
2.8
2.8

20143
20744
22063
24250
28230
38261

2.6
3.0
3.2
3.2
3.1
3.1

**Sent-Out

27

National Electric Power Company

Electrical Energy Purchases

Table (11): NEPCO’s Electrical Energy Purchases (GWh)
2015

2016

2017

2018

)%(

(A) CEGCO

6016.1

4009.4

4096.6

1707.8

)58.3(

(B) SEPGCO

5271.6

7028.0

7478.0

7568.0

1.2

(C) AES Jordan PSC (IPP1)

1792.2

3113.0

2576.0

2739.8

6.4

(D) QEPCO (IPP2)

2237.8

2839.9

2989.7

2713.1

)9.3(

(E) AAEPCO (IPP3)

1377.6

258.3

280.1

485.5

73.3

(F) AES Levant Holding (IPP4)

1100.2

501.2

755.7

752.1

)0.5(

--

--

--

1197.7

--

(H) Wind Energy Companies

121.0

390.7

447.5

705.4

57.6

(I) Solar Energy Companies

0.74

267.5

591.3

836.2

41.4

(J) Others

20.1

21.7

21.0

18.8

)10.5(

16.9
3.2
603.8
18541.1

18.7
3.0
333.8
18763.5

17.0
4.0
51.3
19287.2

14.1
4.7
188.3
18912.7

)17.1(
17.5
267.1
)1.9(

(G) Zarqa Power Station (ACWA)

King Talal Dam
Indo-Jordan Chemicals Co.
(k) Imported Energy from Egypt
Total Energy Purchased
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Table (12): Electrical Energy Purchased by type of Generation in Jordan (GWh)

1. Electricity Sector
Steam Units
Gas Turbines / Diesel
Gas Turbines / Natural Gas
Diesel Engines / HFO
Diesel Engines / Natural Gas
Diesel Engines / Diesel
Hydro Units
Wind Energy
Combined Cycle
Solar Energy
2.Industrial Sector/Indo-Jordan Chemicals Co.
3.Imported Energy (Eygpt)
Total Energy Purchased

2015

2016

2017

2018

)%(

17934.1
3899.7
81.3
352.4
2345.1
91.7
4.7
52.5
123.1
10982.9
0.74
3.2
603.8
18541.1

18426.7
1975.6
1.0
320.1
91.8
630.2
27.8
41.6
393.9
14677.2
267.5
3.0
333.8
18763.5

19231.9
1909.3
18.3
331.2
19.4
994.5
12.4
38.0
449.1
14868.4
591.3
4.0
51.3
19287.2

18719.7
792.1
11.1
304.5
7.6
1221.2
5.4
22.7
707.0
14811.9
836.2
4.7
188.3
18912.7

)2.7(
)58.5(
)39.3(
)8.1(
)60.8(

22.8
)56.5(
)40.3(
57.4
)0.4(
41.4
17.5
267.1
)1.9(

Table (13): Electrical Energy Purchased by type of Fuel in Jordan (GWh)
2015

2016

2017

2018

)%(

1. Electricity Sector

17934.1

18426.1

19231.9

18719.7

)2.7(

Heavy Fuel

6266.0

1886.1

2313.7

514.1

)77.8(

Natural Gas

8687.3

15684.1

15553.5

16623.1

6.9

Diesel

2804.5

153.5

286.3

16.6

)94.2(

Renewable Energy

176.3

703.0

1078.4

1565.9

45.0

3.2

3.0

4.0

4.7

17.5

603.8

333.8

51.3

188.3

267.1

18541.1

18763.5

19287.2

18912.7

)1.9(

2.Industrial Sector/Indo-Jordan Chemicals Co.
3.Imported Energy (Eygpt)
Total Energy Purchased
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Electrical Energy Sales
Table (14): NEPCO’s Electrical Energy Sales (GWh)
A. Distribution Companies

2015
17282.1

2016
17663.2

2017
18320.0

2018
17985.2

)%(
)1.8(

JEPCO

10880.1

10975.0

11383.0

11065.6

)2.8(

EDCO

3337.8

3461.4

3558.9

3577.5

0.5

IDECO

3064.2

3226.8

3378.1

3342.1

)1.1(

B. Large Consumers

881.1

737.6

585.0

459.9

)21.4(

Refinery Co.
Jordan Cement Co./Al Fuhies Plant
Jordan Cement Co./Al Rashadiyeh Plant

44.1
17.1
108.8

27.1
8.7
98.6

27.5
2.1
95.2

24.3
2.0
89.4

)11.6(
)4.8(
)6.1(

Al-Rajhi Cement Co.

118.1

144.1

112.4

116.7

3.8

Al-Hadeetha Cement Co.

100.7

100.0

133.4

28.5

)78.6(

9.9

5.2

3.9

2.0

)48.7(

Potash Co.
El-Hasa Phosphate Co.
Sheidiyah Phosphate Co.

288.8
46.4
27.8

126.6
39.4
33.3

31.3
32.6
20.8

29.5
28.9
16.4

)5.8(
)11.3(
)21.2(

QAIA

68.2

73.4

74.6

72.6

)2.7(

Indo-Jordan Fertilizer Co.

37.2

61.3

32.1

23.6

)26.5(

Haraneh (New Broadcasting)

0.7

0.7

0.4

0.3

)25.0(

AAEPCO (IPP3)

10.2

13.7

12.2

11.2

)8.2(

AES Levant Holding (IPP4)

2.7

3.5

3.1

3.1

0.0

Zarqa Power Station (ACWA)

--

--

--

5.7

--

Wind Energy Companies

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

33.3

Solar Energy Companies

0.002

1.5

2.8

4.9

75.0

C. Exported Energy

49.7

45.5

57.4

93.5

62.9

Egypt

3.0

--

--

--

--

Qatranna Cement Co.

Jerusalem Co. (Jericho)

41.4

42.4

54.0

88.1

63.1

Iraqi Border (Trabeel)

5.3

3.1

3.3

5.4

63.6

D. Other

0.2

0.2

0.5

0.6

20.0

18213.1

18446.5

18962.9

18539.2

)2.2(

Total
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Demand for Electricity*
Table (15): Electrical Energy Consumption in Jordan (GWh)*
2015

2016

2017

2018

)%(

1. EDCO’s Areas

2924.0

3052.0

3139.0

3157.0

0.6

2. JEPCO’s Areas

9209.5

9446.9

9921.8

9653.3

)2.7(

3. IDECO’s Areas

2722.6

2885.9

3051.1

3027.4

)0.8(

4. Industrial Companies

1252.4

1164.1

1164.7

1080.9

)7.2(

Refinery

104.7

105.3

101.3

99.9

)1.4(

Jordan Cement Company / Al-Fuheis plant

17.1

8.7

2.1

2.0

)4.8(

Jordan Cement Co. / Al-Rashadieh plant

108.8

98.6

95.2

89.4

)6.1(

Al-Hadeetha Cement Company

100.7

100.0

133.4

28.5

)78.6(

Al-Rajhi Cement Company

118.1

144.1

112.3

116.7

3.9

Qatrana Cement Company**

148.4

149.4

144.5

150.8

4.4

EL-Hasa Phosphate

46.4

39.4

32.6

28.9

)11.3(

Sheidiyah Phosphate

51.5

33.3

46.8

48.8

4.3

Potash Co.

390.4

331.1

360.6

345.4

)4.2(

Fertilizer Company***

74.6

47.6

42.1

75.3

78.9

Indo-Jordan Chemicals Company

41.2

26.1

43.0

45.9

6.7

Indo-Jordan Fertilizer Company

37.2

61.3

32.1

23.6

)26.5(

AAEPCO (IPP3)

10.2

13.7

12.2

11.2

)8.2(

AES Levant (IPP4)

2.7

3.5

3.1

3.1

0.0

Wind Power Companies

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

33.3

Solar Power Companies

0.002

1.5

2.8

4.9

75.0

Zarqa Power Station (ACWA)

--

--

--

5.7

--

5. Solar Power System / Distribution Grid****

--

77.0

151.7

501.5

230.6

6. Renewable Energy Projects (Welling + Net Metering) / Transmission Grid

--

--

--

--

--

7. Queen Alia Airport

68.2

73.4

74.6

72.6

)2.7(

8. Haraneh B.Station

0.7

0.7

0.4

0.3

)25.0(

9. Others

0.2

0.2

0.5

0.6

20.0

16177.6

16700.2

17503.8

17493.6

(0.1)

Total Consumption

*Error Percentage (± > 2.0% ) **Estimated ***EDCO’s Sales To Fertilizer are not Included to Avoid Duplication
** ** Estimated as (%) from Energy Generated
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Table (16): Electrical Energy Consumption by Sector Type (GWh)
Domestic &
Government*

Industrial

Commercial
& Hotels

Agriculture
& Water
Pumping

Street
Lighting

Total

EDCO

933.0

374.0

333.0

1430.0

87.0

3157.0

JEPCO

5020.7

2019.9

1826.8

609.1

176.8

9653.3

IDECO

1642.6

294.4

302.7

644.9

142.8

3027.4

Industrial Companies**

--

1080.9

--

--

--

1080.9

Other Companies

--

--

73.5

--

--

73.5

Solar Power Systems/Distribution Grid

296.6

92.1

102.2

10.6

--

501.5

Renewable Energy Projects (Welling +
Net Metering) / Transmission Grid

--

--

--

--

--

--

2018

7892.9

3861.3

2638.2

2694.6

406.6

17493.6

2017

7998.8

3909.7

2509.8

2683.2

402.3

17503.8

2016

7591.6

3763.1

2415.7

2551.5

378.3

16700.2

2015

7227.6

3823.2

2376.0

2412.1

338.7

16177.6

2014

6583.4

3878.3

2357.7

2284.2

315.6

15419.2

2013

6265.4

3517.1

2414.9

2076.0

291.0

14564.4

2012

6126

3464

2427

1955

305

14277.0

2011

5667

3486

2173

1899

310

13535.0

315

12857.0

2010

5225

3262

*Include about (6%) Government Building + (1.5%) Others

2187

1868

**Table (15)

Electrical Energy Consumption by Sector Type for the Year 2018
Agriculture &
Water Pumping
%15.40

Street Lighting
%2.32

%45.12

Commercial &
Hotels
%15.08
Industrial
%22.07
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Number of Consumers
Table (17): Number of Consumers in Jordan (Thousands)
2015

2016

2017

2018

)%(

NEPCO *

0.020

0.033

0.035

0.040

14.3

EDCO

227.6

236.8

245.6

253.5

3.2

JEPCO

1265.9

1328.4

1391.1

1453.7**

4.5

IDECO

471.0

495.5

521.3

545.8

4.7

Total

1964.5

2060.7

2158.0

2253.0

4.4

*Represents distribution companies and Large Consumers.

**Estimated

Table (18): Number of Consumers by Type of Consumption in Jordan for the Year 2018

1. NEPCO’s Areas
2. EDCO’s Areas
3. JEPCO’s Areas
4. IDECO’s Areas
Total

Domestic &
Government
Buildings

Industrial

Commercial &
Hotels

Agriculture &
Water Pumping

Street
Lighting

Bulk

--

31

6

--

--

3

40

214147

2199

29332

5865

1948

--

253491

1265009

13374

165722

2181

7413

--

1453699

483428

4889

51704

2492

3298

--

545811

1962584

20493

246764

10538

12659

3

2253041

Sales

Total

Number of Consumers by Sector Type for the Year 2018
Agriculture & Water Pumping
Commercial & Hotels

Street Lighting

%0.47

%0.56

%10.95

Industrial

%0.91

Domestic &
Government
Building

%87.11
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Electrical Energy Losses

Table (19): Electrical Losses by Sector Type
2015

2016

2017

2018

Generated Energy

18516

18924.1

18690

19146

Sent Out Energy

17945

18415.2

18191

18726

3.08

2.69

2.67

2.19

Purchased Energy

18541

18764

19287

18913

Sold Energy / Bulk

18213

18447

18963

18539

1.77

1.69

1.68

1.98

Purchased Energy

17282

17663

18320

17985

Sold Energy/Retail

14856

15385

16112

15838

Losses (%)

14.04

12.90

12.05

11.94

Sent Out Energy and Imported Energy

18538

18761

19283

18906

Consumed and Exported Energy

15787

16168

16755

16392

Losses (%)

14.84

13.82

13.11

13.30

1.Generation Losses (Electricity Generation Companies )

Losses (%)
2. Transmission Losses

Losses (%)
3. Distribution Losses

4. Total Energy losses in Electricity Sector*

*AUX is not include

Electrical Energy Losses
%3.54

% 3.08

%1.81

% 1.77

% 2.69
% 1.69

% 2.67

% 2.19

% 1.68

% 1.98

% 11.94

Power Station Aux. Consumption
Transmission Losses
Distribution Losses
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% 13.79

% 14.04

% 12.90

% 12.05

2014

2015

2016

2017
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2018

Electricity Tariffs
Table (20): Electricity Tariff in Jordan
1.Bulk Supply Tariff

Fifth Block : from 601-750 kWh/Month

169

A- JEPCO

Sixth Block : from 751-1000 kWh/Month

190

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

2.98

Seventh Block : more than 1000 kWh/Month

256

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

71.90

C- Flat Rate Tariff for TV & Broadcasting Stations (Fils/kWh)

173

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

61.88

D- Commercial Sector (Fils/kWh)

B- EDCO

First Block : from 1-2000 kWh/Month

120

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

2.98

Second Block : more than 2000 kWh/Month

175

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

74.02

E- Flat Rate Tariff for Banking Sector (Fils/kWh)

285

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

64.07

F- Telecommunication Sector (Fils/kWh)

C- IDECO

First Block : from 1-2000 kWh/Month

230
273

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

2.98

Second Block : more than 2000 kWh/Month

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

58.20

G- Small Industries (Fils/kWh)

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

48.29

First Block : from 1-10000 kWh/Month

71

D- Large Industries

Second Block : more than 10000 kWh/Month

81

1- Mining & Quarrying Industry

H- Medium Industries (Fils/kWh)

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

2.98

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

237

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

89

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

170

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

75

I- Flat Rate Tariff for Agriculture (Fils/kWh)

60

2- Others

2.00

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

2.98

J- Agriculture (Fils/kWh)*

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

124

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

109

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

59

2. Retail Tariff

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

49

A- Household (Fils/kWh)

K- Flat Rate Tariff for Water Pumping (Fils/kWh)

94
91

3.79

First Block : from 1-160 kWh/Month

33

L- Flat Rate Tariff for Hotels (Fils/kWh)

Second Block : from 161-300 kWh/Month

72

M- Hotels (Fils/kWh)

Third Block : from 301-500 kWh/Month

86

Peak Load (JD/kW/ Month)

Fourth Block : from 501-600 kWh/Month

114

Day Energy (Fils/kWh)

Fifth Block : from 601-750 kWh/Month

158

Night Energy (Fils/kWh)

75

Sixth Block : from 751-1000 kWh/Month

188

N- Streets Lighting (Fils/kWh)

114

Seventh Block : more than 1000 kWh/Month

265

O- Army Forces (Fils/kWh)

146

P- Port Corporation (Fils/kWh)

159

B- Domestic (Fils/kWh)

3.79
89

60

First Block : from 1-160 kWh/Month

42

Q- Agriculture / Commercial (Fils/kWh)

Second Block : from 161-300 kWh/Month

92

Notice Monthly Minimum Charge

Third Block : from 301-500 kWh/Month

109

A- Domestic (JD/Month)

1.0

Fourth Block : from 501-600 kWh/Month

145

B- Other Consumers (JD/Month

1.25

120

* The three part tariff will applied compulsory on agricultural consumers whose connected to the network from 14/3/2008, and Maximum load exceeding 100 MVA
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NEPCO’s Projects
In 2018, the Company completed several projects that enhance and develop the national transmission network, and started with other projects that will be completed in the coming years. Such projects are summarized as follows:
First: Transmission Grid Projects
A) Substations Projects (400,132 kV):Table (21): Substations Projects of 400/132 kV
Added Capacity
(MVA)

Operation Data

Amman West S/S

2x400

Second Quarter/2018

Ma’an S/S ( Green Corridor Project)

2x400

2019

QAIA South S/S ( Green Corridor Project)

2x500

2020

--

2018-2019

Substation

Al-Qatranah S/S (Green Corridor Project + Amman East)

Table (22): Projects of Expanding Existing Substations of 132/33 kV
Added Capacity
(MVA)

Operation Data

Waqas S/S

1x63

2018

Ishtafina S/S

1x63

2018

Sabha S/S

1x40

2018

AL-Salt Industrial S/S

1x80

First Quarter/2019

--

2019-2020

2x25

2019

Substation

QAIA S/S (Green Corridor Project)
Rehabilitation of Al- Qatrana S/S
Amman East S/S (Renewable Energy Projects)

--

2019

AL-Risha S/S . PV

--

Second Quarter/2019

University S/S

--

Fourth Quarter/2019

Hussain University S/S

--

Second Quarter/2019
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Table (23): Projects of Constructing New Substations of 132/33 kV
Added Capacity
(MVA)

Substation
AL-Zarga S/S (ACWA)

--

KFW S/S
Kushboo S/S
Mass S/S
Xnel S/S
Shobak S/S

2x63
2x50
2x120
2x63
2x54

Operation Data
First Stage: Third Quarter/2017
Second Stage: Second Quarter/2018
Second Quarter/2019
First Quarter/2019
Third Quarter/2019
2020-2019
Fourth Quarter/2019

Table (24): Switching Station Projects
Project

Operation Date

Al- Fujaije Switching Station /Wind
Al-Rajif Switching Station / Wind
Oil Shale Switching Station / Atarat
Al- Safawih Switching Station
Xnel Switching Station / Wind
Ad.Dulayl Switching Station / PV
KFW Switching Station / PV
Kushboo Switching Station / Wind
Amman East Switching Station / PV
MASDAR Switching Station / PV
Mass Switching Station / Wind

2018
2018
2019
First Quarter/2019
First Quarter/2019
2019
2019
2019
Third Quarter/2019
Third Quarter/2019
2020

Table (25): Main Substations Installed Capacity (MVA)
Year

400/132/33

230/132

132/33

132/6

132/11

2015
2016
2017
2018

3760
3760
3760
4560

100
100
100
100

8665
8825
8985
9151

155
155
155
155

25
25
25
25
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B) 400, 132 kV Transmission Lines Projects:Table (26): The Completed and Under-Construction Projects

Project

Circuit

kV

Length of the
Added line (Km.
Circuit)

Completion
Date

Connection of Al-Qatranah with Amman West Plant S/S

Double Circuit

400

110

Fourth Quarter/2018

Connection of Al-Fujaije Wind Farm

Double Circuit

132

22

Fourth Quarter/2018

Connection of Al-Safawih Solar Plant

Double Circuit

132

5

Third Quarter/2018

Connection of Al-Rajif Wind Farm

Single Circuit

132

9

First Quarter/2018

Connection of Amman West S/S with Al-Samra S/S

Double Circuit

400

70

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Oil Shale/ Atarat S/S

Double Circuit

400

70

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Amman East S/S (Renewable Energy Projects)

Double Circuit

132

2

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Al-Dhulel S/S

Double Circuit

132

4

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of KFW Solar Plant

Single Circuit

132

1.6

First Quarter/2019

Connection of Kushboo Wind Farm with Al-Tafila S/S

Double Circuit

132

5

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Xnel Wind Farm with Al-Tafila S/S

Double Circuit

132

6

Fourth Quarter/2019

Connection of New Ma’an with Al-Qatranah S/S (Green Corridor Project)

Double Circuit

400

150

First Quarter/2019

Connection of Al-Qatranah with QAIA S/S (Green Corridor Project)

Double Circuit

132

60

First Quarter/2019

Connection of Al-Fujaije Wind Farm

Double Circuit

132

12

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Al-Mwaqar S/S (Solar Energy Project/Baynouna)

Double Circuit

132

12-15

Second Quarter/2019

Connection of Mass Wind Farm

Double Circuit

132

8

Third Quarter/2019

Connection of Jaresh Industrial S/S

Single Circuit

132

10

2019

Table (27): Transmission Line Length (km - Circuit)
Year

400 kV

230 kV

2015

924

2016

132 kV

66 kV*

Overhead Lines

Underground Cables

17

3511

62

17

924

17

3511

62

17

2017

924

17

3555

62

17

2018

1164

17

3574

62

17

* Converted to work on 33kV
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Second: Electrical Interconnection Projects
Interconnection Project

Technical Specifications

Project Status

Voltage
(kV)

Length
(km)

Capacity
(MW)

400

13

550

400

147

)300-800(

400

-

)250-300(

400

43

)150-300(

220

163

)170-500(

The Syrian – Turkish Electrical Interconnection

- All works of this interconnection line 400 KV
(inside the two countries) were completed.
- This line was constructed in the year 2003.
- This line is working now asynchronously.
- It is planned to construct a substation 400 KV
(HVDC) in Berik area in Turkey with a capacity
of (600) MW in order to increase the power
exchange across the interconnection lines.

400

124

)600-300(

The Iraqi – Turkish Electrical Interconnection

The completion percent of this interconnection
line between Iraq and Turkey reached to more
than (90%)
- As for the energy exchange, the Turkish
side has previously supplied electricity to
some areas in Iraq through 132 KV line in an
isolated form.

400

165

400

The Syrian – Iraqi Electrical Interconnection

- All works of the interconnection line 400
KV were completed in both sides.
- The project is not yet operated as a result of
the current prevailing conditions.

400

28

300

The Jordanian – Palestinian Electric
Interconnection (Jericho)

The draft of new contract of selling electrical
energy between NEPCO and Jerusalem Electricity Company was prepared, and it has been
signed during October/2018

∗132

30

26

The Eighth Electrical Interconnection
The Egyptian – Jordanian Electrical
Interconnection
(Submarine Cable)

The energy exchange contract was renewed
between the Jordanian and the Egyptian sides
during January / 2018

The Jordanian – Syrian Electrical
Interconnection
The Egyptian – Syrian Electrical Interconnection
(across the Jordanian network)
The Syrian – Lebanese Electric Interconnection

There was no exchange of electrical energy
among these electrical networks as a result of
the current prevailing conditions in the region

The Egyptian – Libyan Electrical Interconnection
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The Jordanian – Palestinian Electric
Interconnection (West Bank)

The two countries are preparing for JordanPalestine interconnection project, where
several technical meetings were held in this
regard. Technical, commercial and legal committees were formed to establish cooperation
between the two countries. Technical studies
are being prepared to connect the two countries to the high voltages 400,132 kV, and discuss the proposed alternatives of interconnection and the estimated cost of each.

400

101

--

- This project did not practically see light yet
due to the recent security circumstances in
Gaza.

220

70

)70-150(

The Saudi – Egyptian Electrical Interconnection

Interconnection agreement was concluded
between both sides on 12/12/2013. Electric
interconnection agreement, commercial
agreement and electric interconnection
operation agreement.

500

1395∗∗

3000

The Jordanian – Saudi Electrical Interconnection

A memorandum of understanding of electric
interconnection was signed in Amman on
7/12/2017.
Technical and economic studies on the project
were conducted by a global consultant, and
other studies of the approved alternatives of
interconnection are still being conducted in
addition to the mechanism of financing the
project and the stages of implementation.

400

127

-

The Egyptian – Sudani Electrical Interconnection

- Based on the request if the Sudani side to
join the Eighth electrical interconnection, a
contract for preparing the feasibility study
of the interconnection project between Egypt
and Sudan was signed with the consultancy
office PB. The required action is under way to
begin the implementation of the project.

220

160

)70-200(

The Jordanian – Gulf Electrical Interconnection

A Memorandum of Understanding was signed
between GCCIA and NEPCO to conduct
technical and economic feasibility studies for
the project, on 19/5/2016.
In 2018, the Global Consultant completed
the feasibility studies. The two sides were
provided with the preliminary reports thereof.
There are current deliberations on the best
alternative to execute the project

400

- The required approvals for implementing
this project have not been done yet.
The Egyptian – Palestinian Electrical
Interconnection (GAZA Strip)
Pan Arab Electrical Interconnection

* Operates at 33 kV
** of which (1370) km overhead lines + (25) km submarine cable
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NEPCO Responsibilities

NEPCO is keen to implement its responsibilities represented in the following:
1- Operation of the Electrical Power System
NEPCO, through its national control centre (NCC), continued to work on managing and operating the electrical system through daily operations on various electrical system equipment according to the requirements of
the electrical system to achieve the Company’s main objective, as follows:
First: Ensure safe and reliable operation of the electrical system.
Second: Economic operation and dispatch of the electrical system using all available energy sources to
minimize all costs.
The main actions taken to achieve these objectives are summarized as follows:
-

To maintain continuous electrical current, safe and secure electrical system and safety of employees.
Work continuously to reduce the cost of purchasing power by following the most appropriate operating mode for the different circumstances.
- Utilizing the interconnection lines with neighbouring countries to reduce the cost of electricity generation.
- Monitoring the electrical system frequency and voltages and in accordance to the Jordanian transmission grid code.
The electric system in Jordan is comprised of the main electricity generation power plants and the transmission and distribution grids. The transmission grid contains substations and transmission lines with voltages of
400 kV and 132 kV. The transmission grid connects the power plants with load centres around the Kingdom.
In addition, to the interconnection line 400 kV with Syria and the sea cable 400 kV that connects Jordan grid
with Egypt grid, the Jordanian electric system also includes the national control centre (NCC) as well as the
distribution grids that feed 99.9% of the population.
It also includes some private generation plants that can be synchronized (normally not synchronized) with
other generation plants in the common electrical system and other private generation plants that serve only
their owners and are not connected to the unified electrical system.
The electrical system in Jordan is distinguished in terms of efficiency and continuity, and is comparable to
many leading countries at the regional and international levels.
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2- Building, Owning, Maintaining and Developing the Electrical Transmission System.
NEPCO continues its efforts to develop the electrical system in Jordan according to the latest equipment and
technologies available. In 2018, the Company prepared and implemented several regular and annual preventive maintenance programs for all components of the transmission grid to maintain power supply with high
efficiency and professionalism in accordance with international technical specifications and performance indicators for the best electric companies at the regional and international levels. Such development also includes
the national transmission grid through the establishment and expansion of substations 400/132 kV and 132/33
kV, and the establishment of transmission lines 400 kV and 132 kV to connect substations and new generation
plants with the electrical system.
3- Conducting Technical Studies for the Development of the Electrical System.
During the year 2018, NEPCO conducted technical studies for the operation and development of the electrical
system, as follows:
-

Study of expected demand for electric power and future loads.

-

Study of the expansion of power generation projects.

-

Study of the expansion of substations and transmission lines.

-

Operational studies and performance standards of the electrical transmission grid.

-

Studies of electrical faults and uncontrolled outages of the electrical system equipment.
4- Purchase of Electric Power to Sell it to Distribution Companies and Larde Consumers.

NEPCO manages the purchase, transmit, control and sale of electric power by linking generation plants to the
load centres around the Kingdom through the national transmission grid owned by the Company.
5- Providing the Fuel Needed to Operate Generation Units.
Providing the fuel needed by Jordan electrical system is one of the most important challenges facing NEPCO.
This is because Jordan mainly depends on the primary sources of energy imported, which requires the Company to diversify the sources of energy and study all alternatives in anticipation of any change in fuel supply,
specifically natural gas as it is the least expensive compared to other fuels such as diesel and heavy fuel. To
face such challenges, it was necessary to highlight all short and long-term possible solutions and alternatives.
Therefore, imported liquefied gas was used. An agreement was also signed with Egypt to supply Jordan electrical system with 50% of its natural gas needs in 2019. The Company is also working to increase the share of
local sources of primary energy, such as oil shale, in the production of electric power.
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6- Import and Export of Electric Power among the Electric Interconnection Countries.
Through such import and export, NEPCO aims at many technical and economic benefits for the electrical
system of Jordan. Benefits are achieved by the optimal utilization of the sources of electricity generation to
reduce local production cost, increasing the reliability of the national electric grid, and operating the electrical
system with the highest efficiency.
Jordan electrical system is currently connected with Egypt and Syria’s ones, in addition to Jordan-Palestine
electrical interconnection (Jericho area). The company is currently implementing the electric interconnection
project with Saudi Arabia, and the project is expected to complete in 2022.
7- Securing and Contracting the Required Reneration Capacity
NEPCO is directly concerned with securing the required generation capacity in accordance with the expansion plan. The plan includes the projects of future power plants required to meet the needs of Jordan electrical
system generation capacity in order to meet the expected demand on electric power based on planning and
technical studies of electric loads and projected growth rates in the short and long term.
8- Optimal Utilization of Electric Transmission Grid Infrastructure
In order to achieve the Company’s objectives to invest in the infrastructure of the electric transmission grid,
and to invest the Company’s technical capabilities and practical experience in various technical, administrative, financial and computer fields at local, regional and international levels.
NEPCO, through the Department of International Services and Investment, and the Electric Training Centre,
provided many services and consultations and implemented many training programs internally and externally.
The following are the most important missions and achievements during 2018:
A- Electric Training Centre
The Electric Training Centre was established in 1986 comprising many labs and workshops as well as the
training areas.
Objectives of the Centre:
-

Qualifying new technical cadres for the Company and local companies and institutions

-

Training the technical staff ( competency upgrading courses) in the Company and local institutions
and companies.

-

Training universities’ students and local and foreign institutes’ students.

-

Training technical staff in Arab countries and other countries.

-

Maintenance and manufacture of spare parts for some equipment used in the Company.
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program Domains of Training:
-

Installation, operation and maintenance of substations.

-

Design, installation, operation, maintenance and inspection of transmission grids.

-

Design, installation, operation, maintenance and inspection of distribution grids, customer services
and meters inspection.

-

Electrical household wiring, inspection and faults detection.

-

Operation, inspection and calibration of electrical protection systems.

Training System in the Centre
The training programs are designed to meet the needs of local and foreign Companies and institutions at various technical levels in the fields of electricity, control and mechanics. The training centre provides the following training programs:
-

Short-Term Training Programs

Programs are held for periods of less than one month and aim at raising the efficiency of the technical staff
in NEPCO (internal training) and the local companies and institutions (local training). The total number of
trainees in 2018 amounted to (177) trainees.
-

Long-Term Training Programs

Programs last for more than six months and target newcomers, who completed secondary school, in electricity
companies (two year training) and diploma program (one year training). The number of trainees in 2018 was
39 trainees.
-

Training Programs for Educational Institutions (Universities and Institutes)

Programs serve students who are still in school, through summer training, semester training or field training.
The total number of trainees was 254 trainees in 2018.
-

External Training Program

It is held to provide training services for engineers and technicians coming from other Arab countries in cooperation with Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) or other international institutions such as UNDP,
Arab Monetary Fund, Distinct Trend Company and other consulting companies. The total number of trainees
in 2018 amounted to (148).
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B- International services
First: Inside Jordan

-

Renting a number of NEPCO’s dark optical fiber to local companies and government entities.

-

Providing engineering and consulting services in the technical, administrative, financial and computer
fields to a number of local institutions, companies and electricity companies.

-

Hold training programs in the electric training centre for a number of industrial institutions and companies, electricity companies and university students in the Kingdom.

-

Completing a number of training programs for a number of Syrian refugees from Za›tari camp through
the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees funded by JICA. The project was completed and
150 trainees of Syrian refugees in the field of household wiring and customer services were trained.
The program began in 2016 and continued until the end of August this year.

Second: Outside Jordan
-

Signing a memorandum of understanding to execute 12 training programs for cadres from the Iraqi
Ministry of Electricity and the Ministry of Electricity of Kurdistan in Iraq in cooperation with (JICA)
within the third country-training program in technical and administrative areas with the participation
of 150 trainees from Iraq.

-

Signing a new memorandum of understanding with (JICA) within the third country-training program
to hold one training program for cadres from electricity distribution companies and the transmission
company of Palestine Energy Authority in the fields of training of trainers. Ten trainees participated
in this program.
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Manpower and Training
NEPCO, through the Department of Human Resources, held several programs and training activities, in addition to some developmental studies, whether in response to changes in work environment or in accordance
with the requirements by the Company’s management or the Board of Directors’ decisions. Below are the
most prominent training programs and activities implemented during 2018:
− The training activities held in 2018 within the internal training program amounted to (44), while the
number of participants in these activities was (324) from all departments in the Company.
− The training activities within the external training program in 2018 amounted to seven activities, represented only in training courses, and the number of participants in these activities was (29).
− Training opportunities were provided to students of universities, colleges and institutes, in addition to
fresh graduate engineers, through cooperation between the Company and the Jordan Engineers Association and the Ministry of Public Works and Housing. A total of 109 engineers and 35 students were
trained within field and summer training programs.
− NEPCO’s employees at the end of 2018 amounted to (1402), of whom (22.6%) were engineers,
(36.5%) were technicians, (6.0%) were financial personnel, (15.8%) were administrative staff and
(19.1%) were support services employees.

Finanacial Performance
Total Expenses/2018 (1732.0) Million JD

Total Revenues/2018 (1626.0) Million JD

Sales of Energy 84.96%
Change in Fuel Price 14.57%
Others 0.17%

Depreciation 1.59%
Gas Delivery Costs for Generation Stations 0.21%
Others 0.08%
Cost of Sale Natural Gas 0.30%

Sale of Natural Gas 0.31%
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Cost of Energy 88.65%
Finance Costs %7٫12
Operating and Administrative Expenses 1.91%
Maintenance Expenses 0.14%

The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

National Electric Power Company
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
To the General Assembly
National Electric Power Company
(Public Shareholding Company)
Amman – Jordan
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of National Electric Power Company (Public shareholding company) (“The Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in Owners’ equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and with the instructions
of Prime Ministers Council and Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for qualified opinion.
Emphasis of Matters
Without qualifications our opinion, we draw attention to the following:
- As stated in note (2 – e) to the financial statements, the accumulated losses for the year ended December
31, 2018 is (JOD 4,963,952,218) which exceeds 75% of the paid up capital, that requires specific procedures in accordance with paragraph (266 – A) from companies law No (22) for the year 1997 which
states that “If the accumulated losses equals three quarters of the capital value it should be liquidated except if the general assembly in an extraordinary meeting decided to increase its capital”, in addition, the
Company’s current liabilities exceeds its current assets as of December 31, 2018 by (JOD 3,586,465,995)
(2017: JOD 3,857,702,376). All these conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
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-

cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, management plan to
mitigate these conditions are stated in the note mentioned above.
As stated in note (36) to the financial statements, the Company has restated the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2017 in line with the requirements of IAS (8) “Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors “

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, the instructions issued by the Prime Minister’s Council and the Energy and Mineral Regulatory
Commission instructions, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclo-
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sures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence relating to the financial statements of entities or businesses
within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and implementation of audit at the Company level and remain the sole responsible for our
opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Company maintains proper accounting records. The accompanying financial statements are, in all material aspects, in agreement with the Company’s accounting records, and we recommend that the Company’s
General Assembly approves these financial statements taking into account the paragraphs of the basis of
qualified opinion and the emphasis of matters mentioned above.
Kawasmy & Partners CO
KPMG
						

Hatem Kawasmy
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
In Jordanian Dinar
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Subscriber’s contributions
Spare parts of control and transmission equipment
Investments in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments in subsidiary/under liquidation
Total Non-Current Assets
Inventory
Other debit balances
Receivables
Company’s contribution in employees housing fund
Cash on hand and at banks
Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Total Owner’s Equity
Paid up capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Special reserve
Treasury rights
Fair value reserve
Accumulated losses
Net Owners’ Equity
Liabilities
Provision for end-of-service indemnity
Net subscriber’s contribution
Receipts of subscribers’ contribution to projects under construction
General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk non-current portion
Loans non-current portion
Total Non - Current liabilities

Note

As of January 1,
2017

5
5
6
9
8

493,070,570
73,364,707
36,460,211
785,668
603,681,156

462,572,794
75,223,665
35,744,033
1,122,154
50,000
574,712,646

472,001,926
66,886,828
37,363,879
1,411,101
50,000
577,713,734

11
12
13
10
14

29,286,978
10,445,744
661,390,053
3,642,060
1,678,355
706,443,190
1,310,124,346

15,352,715
19,766,419
456,409,980
3,361,060
688,779
495,578,953
1,070,291,599

7,144,029
10,388,457
307,010,667
3,080,060
541,579
328,164,792
905,878,526

1
15
15
15
16
9

230,000,000
9,657,187
11,276,745
11,276,745
22,041,852
477,095
)4,963,952,218(

230,000,000
9,657,187
11,276,745
11,276,745
22,036,852
813,581
)4,885,047,545(

)4,679,222,594(

)4,599,986,435(

230,000,000
9,657,187
11,276,745
11,276,745
22,036,852
1,102,528
)4,884,329,523(
)4,598,979,466(

8,347,184
73,364,707
16,102,162
525,000,000
1,073,623,702

8,376,831
75,223,665
8,065,747
375,000,000
850,330,462

1,696,437,755

1,316,996,705

110,958,860
774,144,506
141,021,595
3,266,784,224

3,971,473
104,900,438
894,355,156
225,180,913
3,124,873,349

4,292,909,185
5,989,346,940
1,310,124,346

4,353,281,329
5,670,278,034
1,070,291,599

19
5
20
18
17

7
21

Income tax provision
Other credit balances
General debt bonds-current portion
Loans-current and matured portion
Due to Banks
Trade payables
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Owners’ Equity And Liabilities

As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)

17
23
22

6,880,243
66,886,828
11,149,553
75,000,000
1,035,298,231
1,195,214,855
3,971,473
106,765,554
300,000,000
786,356,507
46,005,225
3,066,544,378
4,309,643,137
5,504,857,992
905,878,526

The accompanying notes on pages from (8) to (36) are integral parts of these financial statements and to be read therewith and with the
independent auditor report.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note

In Jordanian Dinar
Operating revenue
Revenues from sale of energy
Revenues from the change in Fuel price
Revenue from sale of natural gas
Revenue from other energy
Gross operating revenue
Operating expenses
Cost of energy
Cost of sale natural gas
Gas delivery costs for generation stations
Maintenance expenses
Operating and administrative expenses
Depreciation

25
26

1,381,442,977
236,856,392
4,997,357
2,698,443
1,625,995,169

1,469,799,054
6,541,818
1,430,805
1,477,771,677

27

)1,535,471,296(
)5,172,991(
)3,610,594(
)2,473,371(
)34,082,313(
)27,509,958(

)1,356,249,441(
)7,947,649(
)2,208,179(
)34,525,337(
)26,577,915(

)1,307,603(
)1,609,628,126(
16,367,043
3,534,131
1,909,267
747,315
3,971,473
2,619,215
)104,468(
)107,948,649(
)78,904,673(

)697,395(
)1,428,205,916(
49,565,761
29,985,801
9,577,681
)1,556,967(
3,556,977
(100,570)
)91,746,705(
)718,022(

9

)336,486(
)79,241,159(

)288,947(
)1,006,969(

32

)0.3431(

)0.0031(

28
5

Impairment in the spare parts of control and transmission equipment
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Settlement of prior years’ receivables
Recovery of cost of delivery of the gas line to the generating stations
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains
Reversal of income tax provision
Other revenues
Other expenses
Finance cost
Loss For The Year Before Income Tax
Other Comprehensive Income Items:
Change in fair value
Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share for the Year

For the Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)

6

29

7
30
31

The accompanying notes on pages from (8) to (37) are integral parts of these financial statements and to be read therewith and
with the independent auditor report.
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Statutory
Reserve

Voluntary
Reserve

Special
Reserve

Treasury
Rights
Fair Value
Reserve

Accumulated
Losses

Total
Equity

5,000

Paid up Capital

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY

In Jordanian Dinar

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2018

-

)79,241,159(

)4,599,986,435(
-

)78,904,673(

)4,679,222,594(

)4,885,047,545(

5,000

)336,486(

)4,963,952,218(

813,581

-

477,095

22,036,852

-

22,041,852

11,276,745

11,276,745

11,276,745

11,276,745

9,657,187

Treasury rights
9,657,187

230,000,000

Loss and other comprehensive loss
230,000,000

Balance as of January
1, 2018

Balance as of December 31,2018

Loss and other comprehensive loss

Adjusted balance as
of January 1, 2017

Prior years adjustments
– note (36)

Balance as of January
1, 2017

230,000,000

-

230,000,000

-

230,000,000

9,657,187

-

9,657,187

-

9,657,187

11,276,745

-

11,276,745

-

11,276,745

11,276,745

-

11,276,745

-

11,276,745

22,036,852

-

22,036,852

-

22,036,852

813,581

)288,947(

1,102,528

-

1,102,528

)4,885,047,545(

)718,022(

)4,884,329,523(

)28,912,794(

)4,855,416,729(

)4,599,986,435(

)1,006,969(

)4,598,979,466(

)28,912,794(

)4,570,066,672(

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2017
(Restated)

Balance as of December 31, 2017

The accompanying notes on pages from (8) to (37) are integral parts of these financial statements and to be read therewith and with
the independent auditor report.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31,
In Jordanian Dinar
Loss for the year before income tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Impairment in the spare parts of control and transportation equipment
Provision for end-of-service indemnity
Allowance for doubtful debt
Finance expenses
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss on sale of subsidiary
Reversal of income tax provision

Note

2018
)78,904,673(

2017 (Restated)
)718,022(

5
6
19
13

27,509,958
1,307,603
760,073
2,787,053
107,948,649
)23,999(
8,602
)3,971,473(
57,421,793
)13,934,263(
9,320,675
)207,767,126(
6,321,318
8,036,415
141,910,875

26,577,915
697,395
2,453,078
1,213,544
91,746,705
121,970,615
)8,208,686(
)9,377,962(
)150,612,857(
540,164
)3,083,806(
58,328,971

1,309,687
)789,720(
)108,211,545(
)107,691,578(

9,556,439
)956,490(
)94,151,985(
)85,552,036(

)58,007,735(
)2,023,781(
24,000
41,398
)281,000(
)60,247,118(

)17,148,783(
922,451
)281,000(
)16,507,332(

103,082,590
)84,159,318(
5,000
150,000,000
168,928,272
989,576
688,779
1,678,355

)76,969,120(
179,175,688
102,206,568
147,200
541,579
688,779

30
31
7

Inventory
Other debit balances
Receivables
Other credit balances
Subscribers contributions receipts
Trade payables
Net Cash Flow From operating activities before paying end-of-service indemnity and finance expenses
Payment for end-of-service indemnity
Finance costs and interest paid
Net Cash flow used in operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities :
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Spare parts
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiary
Company contribution in employees housing fund
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities:
Loans
Due to banks
Treasury rights
Islamic Sukuk and general debt bonds
Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year For Cash Flow Purpose

19

5
6

14

The accompanying notes on pages from (8) to (37) are integral parts of these financial statements and to be read therewith and with the
independent auditor report.
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1) GENERAL

National Electric Power Company (the Company) was incorporated on August 29, 1996 as a public shareholding company under registration number (316) with paid up capital of JOD 230,000,000 JOD, in accordance
with Prime Ministers decision convert the Jordanian Electric Authority into public shareholding company.
Based on Prime Ministers decision in its meeting held on October 4, 1997, National Electric Power Company
restructured into three companies starting on January 1, 1999 and keep the activity of transportation, electric
control, purchasing energy and selling it and exchange electric power with neighboring countries at National
Electric Power Company. The Company is wholly owned by Government Contribution Company which is
owned by the Government of Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.
- The Company’s objectives are limited to purchasing generated energy from generating companies and
selling it to distribution companies and major consumers supplied from transport networks around the
kingdom. Exchange electric power with neighboring countries, importing and exporting. Purchase natural
gas for the needs of electric generation stations and selling it to electric generation companies.
- The Company’s head office location is the Swefiah - Amman - Jordan.
- The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 1, 2019 and it is subject to the
approval of the General Assembly.
2) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Statement of compliance
- The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the instructions issued by the Prime Minister’s Council and the Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission instructions.
- The main differences between IFRS as applicable and the Prime Ministers Council and the Energy and
Mineral Regulatory Commission are as follows:
• The Company capitalizes legal compensation expenses paid for the owners of land that the electricity
networks passes through their property in accordance with Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission
decision (Electricity Regulatory Agency previously) in the meeting held on November 18, 2003 and they
depreciate it over 10 years, according to IFRS these expenses should be recognized as incurred.
• The subscribers contributions assets and liabilities presented as a gross amounts on financial position based
on the prime minister decision number 23/11/6189 on June 4, 1985, as the Company net off the assets depreciation and liabilities amortization. The subscriber’s contributions amortized over 25 years. According
to IFRS those assets should be amortized over its estimated useful life.
• According to the Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission decision on March 21, 2018, National
Electric Power Company had been exempted from applying IFRS (9) – financial assets impairment for the
years 2018 and 2019.
• Treasury rights was presented as an equity item according to two agreements between National Electric
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Power Company and Ministry of Planning and international Cooperation related to Arab Fund for Social
and Economic Development loan and OPEC Fund for International Development loan, according to IFRS
it should be recorded as liabilities.
• The Company calculates late payment fees on accrued balances with all governmental entities and electric
generating and distribution companies, and book it as off statement of financial position accounts based
on the Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission decision No. 4155/4/3, according to IFRS it should be
recognized as assets and liabilities.
b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the financial assets measured at the fair value through other comprehensive income, which is measured at fair value, and financial
assets and liabilities that are presented at amortized cost.
c) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the Company’s functional currency.
d) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.
The following a summary about significant areas of estimation uncertainties and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
-

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives for tangible assets based on the general
condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future.
Management frequently reviews the lawsuits raised against the Company based on a legal study prepared
by the Company’s legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the Company may incurred in
the future.
A provision for doubtful debts is taken in the statement of profit or loss on the basis and estimates approved by management in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
A provision against the end-of-service indemnity obligations recognized in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
Management estimates the provision to decrease inventory to net realizable value if the cost of inventory
may not be recoverable, damaged, wholly or partially obsolete, and its selling price to fall below cost or
any other factors that cause the recoverable amount to be lower than its carrying amount.
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-

Management periodically reassesses the recoverability amount lives for other financial assets in order to
determine if there is any impairment in its carrying amount.
- Management estimates the provision for income tax in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations.
- Fair value hierarchy:
The Company is required to determine and disclose the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorized in their entirety, segregating fair value measurements in accordance with
the levels defined in IFRS. Differentiating between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are observable and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may require judgment
and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including consideration of factors specific to
the asset or liability.
Management believes that its estimates are reasonable and adequate.
e) Going concern
The accumulated losses for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to (JOD 4,963,952,218) which exceeds 75% of the paid-up capital, that requires specific procedures in accordance with paragraph (266 – A)
from companies’ law No (22) for the year 1997, also the Company’s current liabilities exceeds its current assets as of December 31, 2018 by JOD 3,586,465,995 (2017: JOD 3,857,702,376).
Based on the opinion of the management ,The Company represent a sovereign project supported by the Government of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan where the company is the sole carrier of electric power in the
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan and adopts many strategic and vital projects in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan on this sector and cannot be dispensed with or replaced, The Company’s budget for the next year has
been presented to the competent authorities and has been approved within the budget of government units for
the year 2019. There are no indicators or decisions or directives by the management of the Company or any
governmental entity related to the reduction of the Company’s business or change its objective in addition to
the absence of any decisions to replace the Company.
During the year 2019, the Company signed a loan agreement with a Jordanian bank to finance some of its
operations during the year 2019. All the loans and obligations of the Company are guaranteed by the Government of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.
The management of the Company confirms that the use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of
the financial statements of the company is consistent with the facts mentioned above and therefore going concern assumption was used in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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3) Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies applied by the Company in these financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2017, except for the following International Financial Reporting Standards amendments and improvements that become effective after January 1, 2018:
-

International Financial Reporting Standard (9): Financial Instrument.
International Financial Reporting Standard (15): Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
IFRS (2): Classification and Measurements of Share-Based Payments.
IAS (40): Clarify Transfers of Investment in Property.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 –2016 Cycle – Amendments on IFRS (1) adopting IFRS for the first
time and IAS (28) Investment in associate and joint venture (effective on January 1st, 2018).
- IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The application of these amended standards did not have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.
The following are the significant accounting policies adopted:
A- Financial instruments
• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets represent the investments in equity instruments for the purpose of retains it in order to generate
revenue in the long term and not for the purpose of trading.
- The financial assets through other comprehensive income are recoded in fair value plus the acquisition
expenses when purchasing it, and it is revalued later in fair value, the change in fair value is shown in
other comprehensive income and in equity which includes the change in fair value resulted from exchange
differences nonmonetary assets in foreign currencies, in case selling these assets or portion of it profit or
losses resulted from that is recorded in comprehensive income and in equity, the fair value reserve balance
related to equity instruments sold is transferred directly to retained earnings not through profit or loss.
- These assets are not subject to impairment test.
- Dividend paid are recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
• Financial Assets at amortized cost
- The Company initially recognizes financial assets at amortized cost on the date that they are originated.
The financial assets held within the Company management whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, which represent payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
- These assets are recorded in cost plus acquisition costs, and the premium/discount is amortized using effective interest rate, restriction or for interest account, reduced by any allowances resulted by impairment
in its value leads to inability of recover the asset or portion of it, any impairment in its value is booked in
statement of profit or loss.
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- The impairment amount in these assets is represented by the difference between booked value in the records and the present value of the anticipated cash flows discounted by the original actual interest rate.
- It’s not allowed to reclassify any of the financial assets to/from this item except for in specific cases in
IFRS. in case of sell any of these assets before maturity date the result of selling is recorded in statement
of profit or loss in a separate item and disclosed about that in accordance with IFRS.
•

Financial liabilities

These liabilities are initially recognized in fair value minus any direct transaction costs and revalued later in
amortized cost using effective interest rate.
•

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially recognized in fair value plus any direct transaction costs and revalued later in amortized cost using effective interest method.
B- Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of infrastructure assets is recognized in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
Ongoing costs of repair and maintenance of infrastructure assets are expensed in the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.
C- Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company that controlled by the Company, control is achieved when the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of the subsidiary and obtain the benefits from its activities, The investment in subsidiary appears at cost in the preparation of separate financial statement
D- Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are shown at cost after the deduction of accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value, property and equipment (except land) are depreciated when ready to use using straight line
method over its anticipated useful life using the following annual rates:
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Property and equipment
Buildings
Transmission lines
Transformation stations
Land lines
Transmission lines-sea cable
Fiber optics communication tools
Furniture and office equipment
Vehicles
Tools and equipment
Operators and communication devices
Control and monitoring devices
Computers
Legal compensation assets
Other equipment
Others

E-

Percentage %
2 – 3.3
2.5
3.3
2.8
2.5
10
10
20
10
5
12.5
20
10
10
3-20

Subscribers contributions assets

Subscribers contributions presented in amounts received from major subscribes in exchange to construct
transformation stations for them in a separate item in accordance with Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission instructions which stated to present these assets in non-current assets under the name of subscribers
contributions assets and had in the liability subscribers contributions liabilities in the same amount.
Subscribers contribution-assets are depreciated at a rate of 4% annually and the Subscribers contributionliabilities are amortized with the same rate as it will not affect the financial position of the Company based
on prime minister decision number 23/11/6189 on June 4, 1985 which do not affect the financial position for
the Company.
F-

Legal compensations assets

According to Electric Regulatory Authority in its meeting held on October 18,2003 the compensation paid
from the Company to land owners that the electrics lines passes through their property considered as capitalized expenditure which shows in financial position under item legal compensations assets and depreciated
over 10 years. The compensations paid during the year are capitalized in the end of accounting period from
January 1, 2003.
G- Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on
the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case
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of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
H- Projects under construction
Projects under construction are shown at cost which includes the cost of constructions and equipment and
direct costs. Projects under construction do not depreciated until the completion of assets related to it when it
is ready to be used.
I-

Revenue recognition and expenses incurred

- Revenue recognized and expenses incurred on accrual basis.
- Sales revenue are recognized during the ordinary workflow of the Company in fair value for the received
monetary exchange or realized after deducting returns and commercial discounts, the pricing is based on
the price list from Mineral and energy regulatory sector.
- Revenues recognized when there is valid evidences which usually are selling agreements according to it
the major risks and rewards are transferred to the client.
- Services revenue are recognized in statement of profit or loss which agrees with the stage of work in the
date of report, the completion phase is assessed by reference to the completed work surveys.
J-

Impairment

Financial Assets
- A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it
is impaired.
- A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
- An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between it carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
- All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by companying together
assets with similar and reduce risk characteristics.
- An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the reversal is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.
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Non-Financial Assets:
- The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date, except
for the inventory and deferred tax assets, to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.
- Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
- All impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
- An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
K- Foreign Currency Transactions
L-

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.
The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in Jordanian
Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during the year, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Foreign currency differences arising on revaluation of old foreign currency been are recognized as assets
and amortized over 25 years.
Fair value

- Fair values represent the amount with which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in a transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
- The closing prices (purchase of assets \ sale of liabilities) on financial statements date in effective markets,
represents the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that have market prices.
- In the absence of quoted prices or lack of active trading of some financial assets or the in absence of an
active market, fair value is determined by comparing with current market value of financial instrument, or
by using the discounted future cash flows discounted at the rate of similar financial instrument or by use
the net assets value method of investments.
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M- End-of-service indemnity
This item represents expenses and related legal and constructive liabilities in respect of employees’ end-ofservice as of financial statements’ date according to the accrual basis.
The Company pays end of service indemnity fees at the rate equivalent for one month’s salary for each year
of service, less the Company’s contribution to the social security for the employee.
N- Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the financial position
only when the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the realization of assets or
settlement of liabilities is done at the same time.
O- Date of recognition of financial assets
Purchase and sell of financial assets are recognized on the trading date (date when company commitment to
sell or buy financial assets).
P- Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Q- Finance expenses
Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the statement of
income using the effective interest method.
R- Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.
- Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
- Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
- Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
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reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
- A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
- Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
- Current tax payable is calculated at the tax rate of 24% in accordance with prevailing income tax law in
Jordan.
S- Earnings per share
The Company calculate basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
T- Delay interest fees
The Company records credit and debit late interest fees in off balance sheets accounts outside the financial
position.
4) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued but are not effective yet:
The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that are available for early application
but are not effective yet:
• International Financial Reporting Standards (16): Leases (effective on January 1st, 2019 with earlier ap•
•
•
•
•
•

plication permitted).
International Financial Reporting Standards (17): Insurance Contracts (effective on January 1st, 2021 with
earlier application permitted).
IFRIC (23) Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective on January 1st, 2019).
IFRS (9): Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective on Jan 1st, 2019).
Plan amendments, Curtailment or Settlement – Amendments to IAS 19 (effective on January 1st, 2019).
Annual improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 (Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23 (effective on January 1, 2019).
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between Investor and its Associates
or Joint Venture (date not specified).
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IFRS 16 Leases
The Company is required to apply IFRS (16) as of January 1, 2019. The Company has assessed the
estimated impact of the initial application of IFRS (16) on the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018, Shown below. There may be a change in the effect of the effective application of
the Standard on January 1st, 2019, for the reasons given below.
IFRS (16) defines the accounting treatment of leases, from the point of view of the lessee. Where the
lessee recognizes and discloses the assets from his or her financial statements, which are subsequently
accounted for using the asset. It also recognizes and records the obligation to acquire these assets in its
financial statements, which represents its obligation to settle the obligation arising from the acquisition
of the asset. There are exemptions from the recognition of short-term leases and low-value leases.
IFRS (16) did not have a material impact on the accounting treatment of leases for current policies, in
the lessor’s terms.
IFRS (16) Leases supersedes IAS (17) leases and other related interpretations.
1. Leases in which the Company is a lessee
The Company will recognize the new assets and liabilities related to the operating leases. These assets will
be depreciated, and the expense will be reflected in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in addition to the interest expense arising from the acquisition of the asset.
Previously, the Company recognized operating lease expenses based on the straight-line method over the term
of the lease and recognized the assets and liabilities arising from the timing difference between actual payments and payments recognized as an expense.
The Company does not expect that there will be a material impact on the financial statements from financing
leases.
Based on the information currently available, the Company estimates that it will recognize the value of JD
297,674,146 as at January 1st, 2019 as additional lease commitments.
2. Leases in which the Company is a lessor
No significant impact is expected for other leases in which the Company is a lessor.
3. Transition
The Company plans to apply IFRS (16) initially on January 1, 2019, using the second option of the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, they will recognize as assets and liabilities for the remaining periods for
the existing contracts, with no restatement of comparative information.
The Company plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This
mean that it will apply IFRS (16) to all contracts entered into before January 1, 2019 and identified as leases
in accordance with IAS (17) and IFRIC (4).
The estimated impact on applying IFRS 16 on the Company’s financial statements as at January 1, 2019 is as
follows:
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Jordanian Dinar
RoU assets
Lease liabilities

As reported at
December 31, 2018

-

Estimated impact of adoption of IFRS (16)
Estimated adjustments
Estimated adjustments at January 1,
due to adoption of IFRS (16)
2019 due to adoption of IFRS (16)
297,674,146

297,674,146

)297,674,146(

)297,674,146(

Effect of application of IFRS (9):
The Company is required to apply IFRS (9) starting from January 1st, 2018
The following are main application aspects:
A- Classification and measurement of financial assets:
Management anticipates that there is no material impact on the application of the Standard. The Company
has early adopted phase one of IFRS 9 as of January 1, 2011 based on the request of the Jordanian Security
Exchange Commission.
B- Classification and measurement of financial liabilities:
IFRS (9) has retained the requirements of IAS (39) regarding the classification of financial liabilities. IAS 39
requires recognition of the differences in the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss, whereas IFRS (9) requires:
-Recognition of differences in the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through statement of profit or loss as a result of changes in credit risk in the statement of comprehensive
income.
-The remaining amount of fair value valuation differences is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not classified any financial liabilities in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Moreover, there is no intention by the management to classify any financial liabilities in this category.
Therefore, there is no impact from the application of IFRS (9) to the financial statements.
C- Impairment of financial assets
IFRS (9) replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS (39) with a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’ model.
Which requires the use of estimates and judgments to estimate economic factors. The model will be applied
to all financial assets - debt instruments which classified as amortized cost or at fair value through statement
of comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss.
Impairment losses will be calculated in accordance with the requirements of IFRS (9) in accordance with the
following rules:
- 12 month impairment loss: The expected impairment will be calculated for the next 12 months from the date
of the financial statements.
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- Impairment losses for the lifetime of the instrument: The expected impairment of the life of the financial
instrument will be calculated until the maturity date from the date of the financial statements.
The expected credit loss mechanism depends on the probability of default (PD), which is calculated according
to the credit risk and future economic factors, the loss in default (LGD), which depends on the value of the
existing collateral, the exposure at default (EAD).
The Company has not calculated the expected impact for the adoption of IFRS (9) on the financial statements
according to the Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission decision on March 21, 2018, National Electric
Power Company had been exempted from applying IFRS (9) – financial assets impairment for the years 2018
and 2019.
D- Disclosures
IFRS (9) requires detailed disclosures, particularly with regard to hedge accounting, credit risk and expected
credit losses. The Company is working to provides all the necessary details for these disclosures to be presented in the subsequent financial statements after application.
E-Implementation
According to the Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission decision on March 21, 2018, National Electric Power Company had been exempted from applying IFRS (9) – financial assets impairment for the years
2018 and 2019.On the other hand the Company will implement other requirements for IFRS (9) started from
January 1, 2018. The Company is working on estimating the anticipated impact resulted from application of
the standard which had not yet finished, in addition the Company will record the impact of all estimates and
required tests according to the standard’s requirements as of January 1st, 2020.
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5) Property, Plant and Equipment and Subscribers Contributions Assets

32,110,616

Beginning
balance

9,608,084

2,033,783

48,961,703

Additions

-

-

)25,886,693(

Transfers

-

-

-

Disposals

82,359,008

117,415,237

42,314,162

55,185,626

Ending balance

29,924,194

68,504,077

-

-

Beginning
balance

2,390,413

7,366,718

-

-

Additions

-

-

-

-

Disposals

32,314,607

75,870,795

-

-

50,044,401

41,544,442

42,314,162

55,185,626

Cost

40,280,379

-

In Jordanian Dinar
2018
Projects under construction
107,807,153
5,982,347

Accumulated depreciation
Net book
value as of
Ending bal- December
ance
31,2018

Lands

-

120,541,690

76,376,661

115,748,012

Legal compensa�
tions assets

-

Buildings

7,979,160

236,289,702

203,109,921

-

-

3,128,807

11,938,180

-

107,768,852

7,735,949

12,532,178

423,269,066

-

12,698,886

-

687,789

-

16,775,539

7,048,160

630,687

28,362,794

12,068,199

406,493,527

233,160,895

Transmissions line

-

25,231,064

Transformation stations
-

20,626,845

-

220,159,145

28,362,794
-

191,171,741

Landlines
25,231,064

62,688

514,576

3,714,232

171,347

-

8,471,624

37,877

66,533

2,650,129

767,400

3,647,699

)26,499(

2,643,136

151,816

3,776,920

-

6,731,185

221,964

-

372,572

-

4,847,137

-

74,818

-

2,313,578

-

8,125,551

52,145

-

3,776,920

2,575,311

359,698

-

Transmission lines-sea
cable

8,986,200

2,590,991

67,033

Fiber optics communication tools

2,821,476

6,371,487

102,670

140,372

2,681,013

4,780,104

1,948,218

-

7,498,585

2,210,908

-

-

4,998,953

56,235

-

-

2,535,542

1,418,748

1,891,983

-

-

3,228,174

566,435,277

2,088,590

89,860

-

-

-

484,025,583

493,070,570

-

1,296

-

224,265

)26,499(

435,916,336

73,364,707

-

2,731,616

8,709

-

3,003,909

32,368,916

)26,499(

48,109,247

65,394

2,679,717

83,640

4,646,922

451,683,166

27,509,958

-

2,023,196

7,489,876

76,741

-

1,050,460,860

408,432,877

4,858,958

Furniture and office
equipment

4,915,313

-

)26,500(

928,986,906

43,250,289

-

Control and monitoring
devices
2,458,801

52,725

-

)26,500(

121,473,954

25,800

Computers
4,594,197

61,007,735

-

-

8,986,900

Other equipment
989,479,625

58,007,735

61,007,735

-

)26,500(

1,050,460,860

451,683,166

32,368,916

)26,499(

484,025,583

566,435,277

Operators and communication devices

Subscribers contributions assets

989,479,625

)26,500(

Others

871,005,671

3,000,000

Vehicles

Total – divided to

118,473,954

Tools and equipment

Property plant and
equipment

Total
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In Jordanian Dinar
2017
Projects under construction
17,796,350
-

)17,451,249(

-

-

-

Disposals

76,376,661
233,160,895
406,493,527
28,362,794
25,231,064

107,807,153

40,280,379

32,110,616

Ending
balance

3,520,365

27,712,192
99,906,541
179,762,479
6,360,371
11,437,512

61,839,349

-

-

Beginning
balance

59,593

127,334

2,212,002
7,862,311
11,409,262
687,789
630,687

6,664,728

-

-

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals

8,125,551
2,575,311

1,891,983

3,647,699

29,924,194
107,768,852
191,171,741
7,048,160
12,068,199

68,504,077

-

-

Ending balance

861,349
156,305

131,213

129,221

46,452,467
125,392,043
215,321,786
21,314,634
13,162,865

39,303,076

40,280,379

32,110,616

Net book
value as of
December
31,2017

Accumulated depreciation

31,765,515
832,935
3,776,920

1,832,390

-

Cost

39,447,444
10,802,836
3,675,814
2,610,702
11,083,820
-

2,023,196

479,554
90,887

88,726

Transfers

97,004,317
-

7,645,997
2,484,424

2,590,991

Additions

72,700,847
230,550,193
395,409,707
28,362,794
25,231,064
-

8,986,900
2,731,616

-

Beginning
balance

3,776,920
45,607
-

65,491

1,977,589
-

2,525,500

209,225
50,478

2,679,717

8,777,675
2,681,138
-

-

1,118,389

1,967

6,371,487

2,677,750

-

-

368,866

-

6,002,621

7,084

7,489,876

7,482,792

135,209
247,893
1,590,288
537,796,459

4,915,313
2,458,801
4,594,197
989,479,625

4,780,104
2,210,908
3,003,909
451,683,166

-

-

80,913
-

84,392
93,965
260,348
31,097,209

54,581
118,821
85,030
30,004,914

4,695,712
2,116,943
2,743,561
420,585,957

4,860,732
2,339,980
4,428,254
959,474,711

381,854,962

462,572,794

871,005,671

408,432,877

-

-

-

26,577,915

17,148,783

75,223,665

853,856,888

Lands
Legal compen�
sations assets
Buildings
Transmissions line
Transformation stations
Landlines
Transmission lines-sea
cable
Fiber optics communication tools
Furniture and office
equipment
Vehicles
Tools and equipment
Operators and communication devices
Control and monitoring
devices
Computers
Other equipment
Others
Total – divided to
Property plant and
equipment

43,250,289

12,856,131

4,519,294

105,617,823

38,730,995

Subscribers contributions assets

118,473,954

537,796,459

31,097,209

451,683,166

420,585,957

989,479,625

30,004,914

-

959,474,711

-

Total
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6) Spare Parts of Control and Transportation Equipment
This item represents the following:
In Jordanian Dinar
Spare parts of control and transmission equipment *
Impairment provision for control and transportation equipment
spare parts

As of December 31,
2018
2017
38,465,209
36,441,428
38,465,209
36,441,428
)2,004,998(

)697,395(

36,460,211

35,744,033

*The movement on Impairment provision for control and transportation equipment spare parts during the year
is as follows:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
697,395
1,307,603
697,395
2,004,998
697,395

In Jordanian Dinar
Beginning balance for the year
Additions during the year
Balance at the End of the Year

7) Income Tax Provision
The movement on income tax provision during the year is as follows:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
3,971,473
3,971,473
)3,971,473(
3,971,473

In Jordanian Dinar
Beginning balance for the year
Paid during the year
Income tax
Reversed from income tax provision
Balance at the End of the Year

The Company’s income tax has been settled up with Income tax department/Amman until the end of 2016,
Moreover, the Company filed it’s income tax return for the year 2017, which had not been audited from Income and Sales Tax Department yet. The Company’s income tax has been settled up with Income and Sales
Tax Department/Aqaba for the end of 2014, Moreover the Company filed it’s income tax return for 2015,
2016 and 2017 which had not been audit by Income and sales Tax Department yet. Based on the opinion of
the Company’s management and its tax advisors, the provisions taken in the financial statements are sufficient
to meet tax obligations.
Sales Tax:
The Company is audited until the end of 2016, and the returns filed for the following periods until the date of
financial statements and there is no tax obligation on the Company.
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8) Investments in Subsidiaries/ Under Liquidation
This item represents the investment in Energized Maintenance Engineering Company, the following is the
important information about the Company
As of December 31,

Discerption

Legal entity

Country of
origin

In Jordanian Dinar
Energized Maintenance
Engineering Company
Total

Limited liability company

Jordan

Percentage
ownership

2018

2017

50%

-

50,000

-

50,000

The Company do not issue consolidated financial statements for the Company and its subsidiaries as one
group where the result of the subsidiary is not material.
The Company liquidation had been finished on February 8, 2018.
9) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
This item includes the following:
As of December 31,
In Jordanian Dinars
Jordan Electric Power Company
Electric Company Irbid City

Number
of shares
626,142
4,060

Fair value

2018

2017

1.19
9.99

745,109
40,559
785,668

1,075,992
46,162
1,122,154

The movement on fair value reserve was as following:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
813,581
1,102,528
)336,486(
)288,947(
477,095
813,581

In Jordanian Dinars
Beginning balance
Change in fair value
Balance at end of the year

10) Company’s Contribution in Employees Housing Fund
This Item represents the amounts transferred to employees housing fund as contributions in the fund.
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11) Inventory
This item includes the following:
		 As of December 31,
2018
2017
22,362
58,317
139,180
1,091,869
29,125,436
14,202,529
29,286,978
15,352,715

In Jordanian Dinar
Stationery and office supplies
Letters of credit
Liquid gas inventory

12) Other Debit Balances
This item includes the following:
As of December 31,
2018
2017

In Jordanian Dinar
Net fuel supply and consumption differences-generation stations (*)
Prepaid expenses
Prepayments to supplier
Projects and studies for others
Employees receivables
Others

2,395,805
97,544
7,497,942
78,388
260,923
115,142
10,445,744

4,504,844
4,900,023
6,361,871
128,966
154,814
3,715,901
19,766,419

*This item represents the difference between fuel quantity that had been supplied for generation company’s
and paid by National Electric Power Company and the quantities that had been consumed by generation
company’s during the year.
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13) Receivables (Restated)
This item includes the following:
In Jordanian Dinar
Power sales receivables (*)
Chiefs of the Staff
Insurance companies receivables-Rihab and Aqaba accidents
Egyptian Natural Gas Holding Company
Jordanian Egyptian Fajr Company For Natural Gas Transmission And Supply
Aqua Power-Zarqa station independent project for electricity generating
Shell International Trading
Others
Allowance of doubtful debts(**)

As of December 31,
2018
2017
655,519,424
446,499,508
1,818,092
1,818,092
4,478,153
4,476,213
92,105
12,187,462
1,521,000
4,831,438
15,366,535
1,363,520
145,476
371,847
2,301,617
2,252,844
681,242,402
473,800,924
)19,852,349(
)17,390,944(
661,390,053
456,409,980

The details of power sales receivables is as follows:
As of December 31,
		
2018
2017
302,986,394
213,952,014
180,837,323
115,031,688
147,677,288
92,308,002

In Jordanian Dinars
Jordanian Electric Power Company
Electricity Distribution Company

Irbid District Electricity Company
Roadway Lighting subscriber receivables
Wholesalers subscribes receivables
Trebil Border Crossing
Jerusalem District Electricity Company

3,522,481
12,647,869
6,542,581
1,305,488
655,519,424

2,729,060
15,437,330
5,929,726
1,111,688
446,499,508

The receivables aging analysis is as follows:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
659,041,363
454,143,203
22,201,039
19,657,721
681,242,402
473,800,924

In Jordanian Dinars
Less than one year
More than one year

(**) The movement on the Allowance of doubtful debts during the year is as follow:
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As of December 31,
2017 (Re2018
stated)
17,390,944
16,177,400
17,390,944
16,177,400
2,787,053
1,213,544

In Jordanian Dinars
Beginning balance
Prior years adjustments – note (36)
Adjusted balance
Addition during the year – note (28)
Reverse provision (write off receivable –
Electricity distribution Company 1999)
Ending Balance

As of January 1,
2017
15,379,979
797,421
16,177,400
-

)325,648(

-

-

19,852,349

17,390,944

16,177,400

14) Cash on Hands and at Banks
As of December 31,
2018
2017
1,505,530
540,679
172,825
148,100
1,678,355
688,779

In Jordanian Dinar
Banks current accounts
Cash on hand

15) Reserves
A- Statutory reserve
According to Jordanian Companies Law No. 22 of 1997; the public shareholding company shall deducts 10%
of their annual profits to calculate statutory reserve, and will continue on this deduction every year until that
it does not exceed the total of 25% of the Company’s authorized capital.
B- Voluntary reserve
According to the Jordanian Companies Law No. 22 of 1997, the General assembly of the Public Shareholding
Company, upon the suggestion of its Board of Directors, may decide to deduct up to 20% of its net profit for
that year to the voluntary reserve account.
C- Special reserve
According to the Jordanian Companies Law No. 22 of 1997, the General assembly of the Public Shareholding
Company, upon the suggestion of its Board of Directors, may decide to deduct up to 20% of its net profit for
that year to the special reserve account. In order to use it for emergency situations or to expand or strengthen
its financial position and to face risks that may face the Company.
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16) Treasury Rights
This item represents the balance of the installments and interest for some of the previous loans that have been
booked for treasury rights account shown in the equity in accordance with loans grants agreements. The balance of this item does not represent any obligation on the Company.
17) Loans
As of December 31,
2018
2017
1,344,986,513
1,239,007,885
502,781,695
505,677,733
1,847,768,208
1,744,685,618

In Jordanian Dinars
Local loans
Foreign loans

The classification of loans balances based on its maturity as follows:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
1,073,623,702
850,330,462
392,702,507
498,757,080
381,441,999
395,598,076
1,847,768,208
1,744,685,618

In Jordanian Dinars
Non-Current portion
Current portion
Matured portion

The loans above was granted with annual interest rates between 1.95%-8%, and it has guaranteed by the Company and Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan Government.
18) General Debt Bonds and Islamic Sukuk
National Electric Power Company had issued general debt bonds cooperation with Central Bank of Jordan as
follows:
-

Central Bank of Jordan bond number (13) in the amount of 75 million JOD annual interest rate 5.54%
matured in 22 March 2022
- Central Bank of Jordan bond number (14) in the amount of 75 million JOD annual interest rate 5.58%
matured in 16 April 2022
- Central Bank of Jordan bond number (15) in the amount of 75 million JOD annual interest rate 5.65%
matured in 26 April 2022
National Electric Power Company had issued Islamic Sukuk in cooperation with Central Bank of Jordan as
follows:
-

Islamic Sukuk in the amount of 75 million JOD annual Murabaha rate 3.5% matured in 23 May 2021.
Islamic Sukuk in the amount of 75 million JOD annual Murabaha rate 4.1% matured in 23 May 2022.
Islamic Sukuk in the amount of 150 million JOD annual Murabaha rate 5.5% matured in 22 August 2023.
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The classification of the financial securities based on its maturity as follows:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
525,000,000
375,000,000
525,000,000
375,000,000

In Jordanian Dinars
Non-Current portion
Current portion

19) Provision for End-of-Service Indemnity
The Company offers benefits to its employees represented by the provision for end-of-service indemnity,
which aims to provide a benefit to employees after the end-of-service, where the benefit granted to the employee who ended his service and has the right to collect these benefits based on the Company’s internal policies.
The movement on end of service indemnity allowance during the year is as follows:

In Jordanian Dinar
Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service expense – note (28)
Less: Provision for end-of-service indemnity paid during the year
Balance at the End of the Year

As of December 31,
2018
2017
8,376,831
6,880,243
760,073
2,453,078
)789,720(
)956,490(
8,347,184
8,376,831

20) Receipts of Participants’ Contributions for Projects Under Construction
This item includes the following:
In Jordanian Dinar
Adjustments of 400 kV line. Project-Special Forces
Station KFW PV project
Maan station conversion project (Solar)

As of December 31,
2018
2017
3,636,183
3,636,183
4,165,979
1,429,564
7,100,000
-

Tafilah conversion station project
Adjustment on Maan solar line – Shedieh kV 132

1,200,000

3,000,000

16,102,162

8,065,747
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-

21) Other Credit Balances (Restated)
This item includes the following:
In Jordanian Dinars
Accrued interests
Contractors retentions
Subscriber contributions deposits
Fils Al-reef deposits
Prepayments on projects and studies for other parties
Deferred revenue
Employees payables
Others

As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
89,221,020
89,483,916
12,871,535
6,694,480
6,864,835
6,864,835
773,526
269,713
163,165
282,405
28,557
31,208
83,545
110,087
952,677
1,163,794
110,958,860

104,900,438

22) Trade Payables (Restated)
As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
2,819,284,164
2,737,965,414
171,587,647
191,397,991
244,617,041
173,780,313
10,228,642
6,660,393
12,126,960
7,523,050
8,939,770
7,546,188
3,266,784,224
3,124,873,349

In Jordanian Dinar
Ministry of Finance (advances)
Energy and fuel purchases (*)
Natural gas purchases (**)
Solar power purchases
Wind energy purchases
Other payables

* Energy and fuel purchases
As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
77,176,397
41,817,745
28,443,055
26,420,175
11,310,044
90,484,953
7,431,125
7,460,423
5,349,547
5,264,476
6,932,220
7,101,824
13,119,357
12,417,525
19,026,192
2,799,710
430,870
171,587,647
191,397,991

In Jordanian Dinar
Central Electricity Generating Company
Al-Samra Electric Power Company
Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company
Al-Qatranah Electric Power Company
Amman East Station Power Plant
Amman East Power Plant Levant
Amman Asia Company
Aqua power Company / Zarqa
Others
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** Natural gas purchases
In Jordanian Dinar
Jordanian Egyptian Fajr Company for Natural Gas Transmission
and Supply
Sales and Income tax department / sales tax on gas
Shell International trading
Aqaba Development Corporation
Aqaba Port Marine Services Company
Others

As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
57,435,664

21,995,384

152,430,155
23,979,566
619,078
4,436,818
5,715,760
244,617,041

102,069,233
36,372,947
4,691,587
2,895,694
5,755,468
173,780,313

23) Due to Banks
As of December 31,
2018
2017
85,261,774
2,400,000
3,200,000
4,015,613
4,806,526
14,457,691
35,988,975
44,778,320
692,149
34,732,130
35,390,840
35,399,994
16,568,029
16,999,999
2,170
14,165,759
17,342,539
141,021,595
225,180,913

In Jordanian Dinar
Bank of Jordan
Citi Bank
Housing Bank For Trading And Financing
Cairo Amman Bank – USD
Cairo Amman Bank – JOD
Arab Bank – JOD
Standard Chartered Bank – USD
Standard Chartered Bank – JOD
Arab Investment Bank– JOD
Itihad Bank – USD
Arab investment bank – JOD

Bank facilities above were granted with annual interest rates between 3.95%- 7.88%.
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24) Due from related parties – Transactions with related parties
Related parties include associates, key partners, directors and senior executive management. The Company’s
management had approved a policy for prices and terms of transactions with related parties where the transactions occurring within the activity.
24-1) Financial position items
For the Year Ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar
Trade payable

Nature of relationship

2018

2017

Al-Samra for Electric generating Company –Generating electricity – note (22)

Sister Company

28,443,055

26,420,175

Al-Samra for Electric generating Company – Wind energy – note (22)

Sister Company

2,692,949

2,574,919

Al-Samra for Electric generating Company Solar Energy – note (22)

Sister Company

2,379,874

125,359

33,515,878

29,120,453

Balances above do not bear interest and there is no timeline schedule for installments.
24-2) Transactions with related party
Jordanian Dinar

For the Year Ended December 31,

Trade payable

Nature of transaction

2018

2017

Operating lease

544,867,085

449,966,157

Al-Samra for Electric generating Company – note (27)

25) Revenues from Sale of Energy
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

For the Year Ended December 31,2017

Amount of sold
energy Mega
Wat / Hour

Average price
Fils / Kilo Wat

Total
JOD

Amount of sold
Average price
energy Mega
Fils / Kilo Wat
Wat / Hour

Jordanian Electric Power Company

11,065,585

75.72

837,896,225

11,383,042

79.296

902,633,050

Irbid District Electricity Company

3,342,126

62.51

208,923,050

3,378,106

65.369

220,824,720

Electricity Distribution Company

Total
JOD

3,577,469

72.46

259,207,253

3,558,919

73.618

262,001,601

Wholesalers subscribes receivables

460,478

143.56

66,105,778

585,393

135.686

79,429,516

Jerusalem District Electricity
Company

88,099

98.73

8,697,818

54,061

83.933

4,537,465

Trebil Border Crossing

5,395

113.60

612,853

3,281

113.600

372,702

18,539,152

74.51

1,381,442,977

18,962,802

77.510

1,469,799,054
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26) Revenues from the change in Fuel price
The Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission instructions has activated the fuel price difference starting
from 1/12/2017 on some consumer categories based on the price of Brent crude oil in the case of a rise of more
than 55 USD / barrel, which is equilibrium point to the electrical system, the price is reviewed monthly, and
income had recognized which the effect on the average rate of sale price as follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,
2018

Jordanian Electric Power Company
Irbid District Electricity Company
Electricity Distribution Company
Wholesalers subscribes receivables
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Average price
Fils / Kilo Wat
12.64
12.57
12.99
18.48
12.84

2017
Total
Jordanian Dinar
139,876,299
42,015,226
46,457,278
8,507,589
236,856,392
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Average price
Fils / Kilo Wat
0.35
0.37
0.33
0.28
0.35

Total
Jordanian Dinar
3,977,632
1,234,102
1,164,200
165,884
6,541,818

27) Cost of Energy
2018 ,For the Year Ended December 31

2017 ,For the Year Ended December 31

Quantity of
Energy leased

Average
Price

Total

Quantity
of Energy
leased

Average
Price

Total

Megawatt /
Hour

Fils / Kilo
Wat

JOD

Megawatt /
Hour

Fils / Kilo
Wat

JOD

Cost of generated energy from fuel and gas

17,182,902

81.80

1,405,579,064

18,197,099

69.02

1,256,013,608

Cost of generated revenue from renewable
energy resources

1,541,551

75.62

116,564,516

1,038,727

93.49

97,113,963

Cost of energy from international connectivity

188,296

70.78

13,327,716

51,266

60.90

3,121,870

18,912,749

81.19

1,535,471,296

19,287,092

70.32

1,356,249,441

Central Electricity Generating Company

1,707,778

105.86

180,789,756

4,096,649

70.94

290,602,010

Al-Samra Electric Power Company

7,568,039

72.00

544,867,085

7,477,966

60.17

449,966,157

Amman East Station Power Plant

2,739,830

71.75

196,574,457

2,576,023

60.77

156,556,037

Al-Qatranah Electric Power Company

2,713,145

76.22

206,786,415

2,989,746

63.89

191,027,688

Amman Asia Electricity Generating Company

485,535

213.32

103,573,436

280,056

299.31

83,824,362

Amman East Power Plant Levant

752,062

123.56

92,927,570

755,718

110.13

83,230,392

Details of the leased energy as below :

Egyptian Electricity Transmission Company

188,296

70.78

13,327,716

51,266

60.90

3,121,870

1,197,684

66.22

79,309,933

-

-

-

Wind energy purchases

705,374

70.25

49,554,912

447,545

83.64

37,432,256

Solar energy purchases

836,177

80.14

67,009,605

591,182

100.95

59,681,707

King Talal Dam and India-Jordan Chemicals
Company

18,829

39.85

750,411

20,941

38.54

806,962

18,912,749

81.19

1,535,471,296

19,287,092

70.32

1,356,249,441

Aqua Power Company - Zarqa

This item includes cost of utilized energy by the Company according to operating lease agreement with electricity generation companies, the Company had recognized the cost in accordance with International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) (4) “determine whether the arrangements includes lease contract”.
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28) Operating and Administrative Expenses (Restated)
This item includes the following:
In Jordanian Dinar
Wages and salaries
Company contributions (social securities, saving, medical
and life insurance)
Assets insurance
Allowance for doubtful accounts – note (13)
Registration fees - Energy and Mineral Regulatory Commission
Security
End of service benefit – note (19)
Professional and consultant services
Stamps and university fees
Fuel, electricity and water
Travel and per diem
Cleaning
Marketing and advertisement
Telecommunications
Stationery and prints
Subscriptions
Training
Cars licensing and registration fees
Board of directors’ transportation and representations
Seminars and conferences
Hospitality
Miscellaneous
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For the Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
19,183,458
18,379,535
5,015,337

4,852,693

859,001
2,787,053
1,956,299
990,689
760,073
1,217,964
3,939
426,838
89,777
201,529
85,904
73,798
37,154
68,470
57,307
26,698
38,100
23,281
51,472
128,172
34,082,313

1,053,620
1,213,544
1,896,280
843,990
2,453,078
802,691
1,770,688
364,941
102,581
144,063
58,353
75,251
51,079
62,269
27,944
39,794
42,208
27,808
45,713
217,214
34,525,337

29) Settlement of Prior Years’ Receivables (Restated)
This item represents the value of the settlement of the disputed amounts with the Central Electricity Generating Company and the settlement of the difference in the fuel prices achieved from the electricity sales of
Irbid Electricity Company and the Electricity Distribution Company for the month of 12/2017, in addition to
registration fees differences with the commission for the year 2015.
30) Other Revenues
For the Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
1,527,357
1,550,970
51,644
6,820
50,000
50,000
34,885
49,600
35,063
97,389
144,225
2,651
61,659
1,363,520
139,626
258,621
23,999
691,664
36,499
2,619,215
3,556,977

In Jordanian Dinar
Net international service revenue
Interest income from banks
Land rents
Selling copies of tenders
Dividends
Compensations from insurance companies
Amortization of deferred revenues
Aqua company fines
Interest on late payments
Gains from sale of property plant and equipment
Others

31) Other Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
45,601
49,856
8,602
50,265
50,714
104,468
100,570

In Jordanian Dinar
Net housing and break areas expenses
Investment in subsidiaries losses
Others
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32) Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share
For the Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
)78,904,673(
)718,022(
230,000,000
230,000,000
)0.3431(
)0.0031(

In Jordanian Dinar
Loss for the year
Average number of shares
Basic and diluted loss per share

33) Contingent Liabilities
The Company has contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statement as follow:
As of December 31,
2018
2017
96,663,086
123,371,051
33,404,550
35,061,927
130,067,636
158,432,978

In Jordanian Dinar
Letters of credit and guarantees
Legal cases*

* Based on the opinion of the management and it’s legal counsel of the Company, the Company’s legal position in these cases is good and there is no need to record provisions against them.
- The Company calculates late interest fees on recognized balances for its benefit or on it with all government
entities and electric generating and distribution companies, and book it in off balance sheet accounts, the delays penalties for the benefit of the Company amounted to JOD 117,323,904 as of December 31, 2018, and
the penalties on the Company amounted to JOD 35,387,876 as of December 31, 2018.
34) Financial Risk Management
Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
- Capital management
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.
Risk management framework
The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of company’s risk management framework.
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The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Company Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
- Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises from the receivables, other debit balances and cash on hand
and at banks.
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:
In Jordanian Dinar
Other debit balances
Receivables
Cash on hand and at banks

Book Value As of December 31,
2018
2017 (Restated)
10,445,744
19,766,419
661,390,053
456,409,980
1,505,530
540,679
673,341,327
476,717,078

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customer operate, has less of an influence on credit risk.
- Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
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The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including
the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company maintains line of credit from its
bank for sudden cash requirements. Therefore, the Company maintains line of credit facilities to meet shortterm obligations in an overdraft accounts taken from several local banks.
The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
In Jordanian Dinars

Book Value

Contracted
Cash flows

Months 6
or less

6-12
Months

More than
one year

Provision for end-of service- indemnity
Receipts of subscribers’ contribution to
projects under construction

8,347,184

8,347,184

-

-

8,347,184

16,102,162

16,102,162

-

-

16,102,162

525,000,000

525,000,000

-

1,847,768,208

1,847,768,208

381,441,999

392,702,507

1,073,623,702

110,958,860

110,958,860

104,094,025

-

6,864,835

141,021,595
3,266,784,224

141,021,595
3,266,784,224

141,021,595
3,266,784,224

-

-

5,915,982,233

5,915,982,233
Contracted Cash
flows

3,893,341,843
Months 6
or less

392,702,507
6-12
Months

1,629,937,883
More than one
year

8,376,831

-

-

8,376,831

8,065,747

-

-

8,065,747

375,000,000

-

-

375,000,000

2018

General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk
Loans
Other credit balances
Due to banks
Trade payables
In Jordanian Dinars

Book Value

2017 (Restated)
Provision for end-of service- indemnity
8,376,831
Receipts of subscribers’ contribution to
8,065,747
projects under construction
General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk
375,000,000
Loans
1,744,685,618

525,000,000

Income tax provision

3,971,473

1,744,685,618
3,971,473

644,976,616
3,971,473

249,378,540
-

850,330,462
-

Other credit balances
Due to banks
Trade payables

104,900,438

104,900,438

104,900,438

-

-

225,180,913
3,124,873,349

225,180,913
3,124,873,349

225,180,913
3,124,873,349

-

-

5,595,054,369

5,595,054,369

4,103,902,789

249,378,540

1,241,773,040

Annual Report 2018

86

The Company liquidity position as of date of financial statements was as follow:
As of December 31,
2018
)Restated( 2017
706,443,190
495,578,953
4,292,909,185
4,353,281,329
)3,586,465,995(
)3,857,702,376(

In Jordanian Dinars
Current assets
Less: Current liabilities
Deficit in working capital

The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including
the servicing of financial obligations through its operating future cash flows and borrowing; this excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
- Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate and equity
prices will affect the Company’s profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to control the extent to which the Company is exposed to market
risk within acceptable limits in addition to maximizing returns.
- Currency exchange risk
Most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are denominated in Jordanian Dinars and most of the
Company’s transactions are denominated in Jordanian Dinars and US Dollars. Since the dollar / dinar exchange rate is stable, the management of the company believes that it is not exposed to exchange rate risk
substantially.
The summary of quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk provided to management of the Company based on its risk management policy was as follows:
In Jordanian Dinars
2018
Cash on hand and at banks
Loans
2017
Cash on hand and at banks
Loans

Euro

Kuwait Dinar

Islamic Dinar

1,170
1,471,737
1,472,907

16,576,292
16,576,292

22,434,815
22,434,815

1,224
1,695,625
1,696,849

24,285,102
24,285,102

25,739,409
25,739,409
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- Sensitivity analysis
A strengthening (weakness) of the Jordanian Dinars, as indicated below, against the EURO, Kuwait Dinar and
Islamic Dinar as of December 31 would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting date. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017, albeit that the reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances were
different, as indicated below:
In Jordanian Dinars
2018
EURO (10% change)
Kuwait Dinar (10% change)
Islamic Dinar (10% change)

Increase
Equity

Loss

Equity

Income

)147,057(
)1,657,629(
)2,243,482(

)147,057(
)1,657,629(
)2,243,482(

147,057
1,657,629
2,243,482

147,057
1,657,629
2,243,482

In Jordanian Dinars
2017
EURO (10% change)
Kuwait Dinar (10% change)
Islamic Dinar (10% change)

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Equity

Loss

Equity

Income

)169,440(
)2,428,510(
)2,573,941(

)169,440(
)2,428,510(
)2,573,941(

169,440
2,428,510
2,573,941

169,440
2,428,510
2,573,941

- Interest rate risk
At the reporting date of financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:
In Jordanian Dinar
Fixed Rate Instruments:
Loans
General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk
Due to banks

2018

)Restated( 2017

1,847,768,208
525,000,000
141,021,595
2,513,789,803

1,744,685,618
375,000,000
225,180,913
2,344,866,531

Sensitivity Analysis
An increase in the interest average rate by 1% will lead to increase in finance expense with an amount of
JOD 25,137,898 a decrease in the interest average rate by 1% will lead to decrease in finance expense with
an amount of JOD 25,137,898.
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the statement of profit or loss.
- Other market price risk
Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held for meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Company’s obligations as well as investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Management of the Company monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment
portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual
basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management Committee.
- Capital management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares, non-redeemable preference shares and accumulated losses.
The management monitors the return on capital, which is management defined as net operation income divided by total shareholders’ equity.
The management seeks to maintain a balance between the highest returns that might be possible with highest
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
35) Fair Value Hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). Prices quoted in active markets for similar instruments or through the use of valuation model that includes inputs that can be traced to markets, these
inputs good be defend directly or indirectly.
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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A. Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
Carrying
Amount

December 31, 2018
Fair Value
Level 1
Level 2

1,678,355

1,678,355

-

-

785,668

785,668

-

-

141,021,595

141,021,595

-

-

In Jordanian Dinar
Financial Assets
Cash on hand and at banks
Investments in financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Financial liabilities
Due to banks

Level 3

December 31, 2017
In Jordanian Dinar
Financial Assets
Cash on hand and at banks
Investments in financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Financial liabilities
Due to banks

Fair Value
Level 2

Carrying
Amount

Level 1

688,779

688,779

-

-

1,122,154

1,122,154

-

-

225,180,913

225,180,913

-

-

Level 3

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year 2017 and 2018.
B. Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value:
In Jordanian Dinar
Financial assets
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Loans
General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk

December 31, 2018
Fair Value
Level 1
Level 2

Carrying
Amount

Level 3

661,390,053

-

661,390,053

-

3,266,784,224
1,847,768,208
525,000,000

-

3,266,784,224
1,847,768,208
525,000,000

-

)December 31, 2017 (Restated
In Jordanian Dinar

Carrying Amount

Level 1

Fair Value
Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Investments in subsidiary / under liquidation
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Loans
General debt bonds and Islamic Sukuk
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-

50,000

-

456,409,980

50,000

-

456,409,980

-

3,124,873,349
1,744,685,618
375,000,000

-

3,124,873,349
1,744,685,618
375,000,000

-
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For items illustrated above, level 2 fair values for financial assets and liabilities have been determined based
on effective Interest rates and the agreed upon pricing models, which reflects credit risks for parties dealing
with the Company. Management believes that the carrying amount of these financial assets approximate their
fair value due to their short-term maturities.
There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year 2017 and 2018.
36) Comparative Figures
The Company adjusts its previous financial statements in accordance with IAS (8) Changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates and accounting errors by making the following adjustments:
-During the prior years, the Company has recognized a payable to Al Samra for generating electricity Company relating to the initial mobilization of fuel in the statement of financial position, which is not in line
with the pricing agreement signed with Al Samra Power Company amounting to 19,731,760 JD.
-The Company did not recognize the disputed liability in favor of Jordan Petroleum Refinery Company in
its records, which belong to previous years, amounting to 2,085,071 JD.
-The Company has not followed the guidance of IFRS (9) in calculating the financing costs of certain Islamic loans.
The comparative figures represent the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. The comparative figures for 2017 have been reclassified to match the current year figures.
The impact of the amendments to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 is
as follows:
Jordanian Dinar
Financial position items
Inventory
Control and transportation equipment spare parts
Receivables
Accumulated losses
Trade payables
Other credit balances
Statement of profit or loss
Operating and administrative
expenses
Finance costs
Impairment in the control and transportation equipment spare parts

Balance before restatement and reclassification

Reclassification

Restatement impact

Balance after
restatement

51,096,748

(35,744,033)

-

15,352,715

-

35,744,033

-

35,744,033

457,207,401
(4,860,905,148)
3,138,534,240
67,894,571

-

(797,421)
(24,142,397)
(13,660,891)
37,005,867

456,409,980
(4,885,047,545)
3,124,873,349
104,900,438

(33,453,965)

697,395

(1,768,767)

(34,525,337)

(98,285,869)

-

6,539,164

(91,746,705)

-

(697,395)

-

(697,395)
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Below the amendments impact on the financial statements for year ended January 1, 2017
Jordanian Dinar

Balance before
restatement and
reclassification

Reclassification

Restatement
impact

Balance after restatement

44,507,908

)37,363,879(

-

7,144,029

-

37,363,879

-

37,363,879

307,808,088
)4,855,416,729(
3,081,974,036
63,220,523

-

)797,421(
)28,912,794(
)15,429,658(
43,545,031

307,010,667
)4,884,329,523(
3,066,544,378
106,765,554

Financial position items
Inventory
Control and transportation equipment spare parts
Receivables
Accumulated losses
Trade payables
Other credit balances
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37) Segment reporting:
The company operates in Jordan. The summary of their operating result in Amman and Aqaba as below:
Amman

2018
Aqaba

Total

Revenues from sale of energy

1,328,604,244

52,838,733

Revenues from the change in
Fuel price

227,855,849
4,807,457

In Jordanian Dinar

Amman

2017 (Restated)
Aqaba

Total

1,381,442,977

1,418,286,844

51,512,210

1,469,799,054

9,000,543

236,856,392

6,312,854

228,964

6,541,818

189,900

4,997,357

-

-

-

Operating revenue

Revenue from sale of natural gas
Revenue from other energy

2,595,902

102,541

2,698,443

1,380,727

50,078

1,430,805

Gross Operating revenue

1,563,863,452

62,131,717

1,625,995,169

1,425,980,425

51,791,252

1,477,771,677

Operating expenses
Cost of energy

1,477,123,387

58,347,909

1,535,471,296

1,308,780,711

47,468,730

1,356,249,441

Cost of sale natural gas

4,976,417

196,574

5,172,991

-

-

-

Gas delivery costs for generation
stations

3,473,391

137,203

3,610,594

7,669,481

278,168

7,947,649

Maintenance expenses

2,379,383

93,988

2,473,371

2,130,893

77,286

2,208,179

Operating and administrative
expenses

32,828,500

1,253,813

34,082,313

33,354,448

1,170,889

34,525,337

Depreciation

1,257,914

49,689

1,307,603

672,953

24,442

697,395

Impairment in the spare parts of
control and transmission
equipment

26,464,580

1,045,378

27,509,958

25,647,688

930,227

26,577,915

1,548,503,572

61,124,554

1,609,628,126

1,378,256,174

49,949,742

1,428,205,916

Operating Income

15,359,880

1,007,163

16,367,043

47,724,251

1,841,510

49,565,761

Settlement of prior years’ receivables

2,801,535

732,596

3,534,131

28,936,298

1,049,503

29,985,801

Recovery of cost of delivery of
the gas line to the generating
stations

1,836,715

72,552

1,909,267

9,242,462

335,219

9,577,681

Net foreign exchange (losses)
gains

751,050

)3,735(

747,315

)1,560,277(

3,310

)1,556,967(

Reversal of income tax provision

3,971,473

-

3,971,473

-

-

-

Other revenue

2,619,215

-

2,619,215

3,556,977

-

3,556,977

Other expenses

)104,468(

-

)104,468(

)100,570(

-

)100,570(

)103,264,624(

)4,684,025(

)107,948,649(

)88,306,700(

)3,440,005(

)91,746,705(

)76,029,224(

)2,875,449(

)78,904,673(

)507,559(

)210,463(

)718,022(

Gross Operating expenses

Finance costs
(Loss) Profit for the year

93

National Electric Power Company

TO SYRIA

TO SYRIA

TO RAMALLAH

SABHA
132/33 kV
AMMAN
WEST
132/33kV

WAQAS

AMMAN
WEST
400/132kV

MAFRAQ
132/33 kV

AL-RISHA

CEGCO
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